a)

a)

Chester County Council Meeting

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706
Monday, March 3, 2025 | 6:00 PM

AGENDA

. CALL TO ORDER

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

February 18,2025 Council Meeting Minutes

. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS

. PUBLIC HEARING

Ordinance 2025-6 An ordinance to dissolve the Chester County Rural Fire Board; to
create the Chester County Fire Service Board; to provide for the governance; to create
the purpose and implementation; to define the authority and scope; and other related
matters.

. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS

a)

1t Reading of Ordinance 2025-9 (Title Only)

Providing for the imposition of fees for services provided by the county inside municipal
limits; acknowledging the municipality’s consent to provide such services; invoking the
pending ordinance doctrine; and other related matters.

1%t Reading of Ordinance 2025-8

Providing for an amendment to Ordinance No. 2021-18, which provided for the use of
excess funding for “projects” and/or “capital projects” as provided for under Ordinance
No. 2019-5; and providing for other related matters.

Approval of bid for the Great Falls Visitor Center to J.M. Cope, Inc. of Rock Hill, SC in the
amount of $2,624,000

2" Reading of Ordinance 2025-7
Approving the execution and delivery of a development agreement between the County
and Vista Resources, LLC; and providing for other related matters.

1|Page



e)

3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-6

An ordinance to dissolve the Chester County Rural Fire Board; to create the Chester
County Fire Service Board; to provide for the governance; to create the purpose and
implementation; to define the authority and scope; and other related matters.

Resolution 2025-7 Authorizing the transfer of ownership of K-9 Deputy Reba to
York County Sheriff’s Office.

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

8. OLD BUSINESS

a)

d)

2" Reading of CCMA24-17 Vista Resources, LLC request Tax Map #079-01-17-018-000 (+/-
1.47 acres) located at 2228 J A Cochran Bypass, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from
General Commercial District (GC) to Planned Development (PD). The Planning
Commission voted 4-1 to approve.

2" Reading of CCMA24-18 Vista Resources, LLC request Tax Map #079-01-17-013-000 (+/-
32.24 acres) located behind 2228 J A Cochran Bypass, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned
from Multi-Family Residential District / Rural Two District (RG-1 & R2) to Planned
Development (PD). The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to approve.

2" Reading of CCMA24-19 Vista Resources, LLC request Tax Map #078-01-01-034-000 (+/-
11.38 acres) located behind 2228 J A Cochran Bypass, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned
from General Residential District / Multi-Family Residential District (RG-2 & RG-1) to
Planned Development (PD). The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to approve.

From CCTC:
1. Approval of Roads to be Paved for 2025 using One-Time C-Funds

9. NEW BUSINESS

a)

b)

Approval of a contract with Samsara, Inc. for connected fleet management

1%t Reading of CCMA25-01 Mary Sims request Tax Map #081-00-00-013-000 located at
1525 Columbia Road, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to
General Residential District (RG-2). The Planning Commission voted 6-0 to approve.

15t Reading of CCTA25-01 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 2 § 2-101 District Purposes

Change Text: “A planned development district may-be-predeminatelyresidential-er
predeminantly-commereiaterindustrial must include a proportionate mix of residential

and commercial or industrial uses and may be proposed for any area. A planned
development district must contain more than one type or density of residential unit.”

2|Page



d) 1% Reading of CCTA25-02 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 4 § 4-129 PD Planned Development District Regulations
Change Text: “Planned Development districts may-permit shall consist of a mixture of
different types of housing with compatible commercial uses, shopping centers, office
parks, and other mixed-use development.”

e) 1% Reading of CCTA25-03 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 4 § 4-110 RS-1- Single Family Residential District Regulations
Add New Text: “Utility Capacity: The planned number of units in a subdivision using
public water and sewer shall not exceed the guaranteed allotment for those utilities.
Should the water and sewer guarantee expire before the development construction
begins, the zoning shall revert to the previous zoning.”

f) 1 Reading of CCTA25-04 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 4 § 4-112 - RG-1 Multi-Family Residential District Regulations
Add New Text: “Utility Capacity: The planned number of units in a subdivision using
public water and sewer shall not exceed the guaranteed allotment for those utilities.
Should the water and sewer guarantee expire before the development construction
begins, the zoning shall revert to the previous zoning.”

g) 1% Reading of CCTA25-05 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 4 § 4-114 - RG -2 - General Residential District Regulations
Add New Text: “Utility Capacity: The planned number of units in a subdivision using
public water and sewer shall not exceed the guaranteed allotment for those utilities.
Should the water and sewer guarantee expire before the development construction
begins, the zoning shall revert to the previous zoning.”

h) 1% Reading of CCTA25-06 Chester County Zoning Ordinance - Text Amendments
Chapter 4 § 4-116 - LC - Limited Commercial District Regulations
Add New Text: “Utility Capacity: The planned number of units in a subdivision using
public water and sewer shall not exceed the guaranteed allotment for those utilities.
Should the water and sewer guarantee expire before the development construction
begins, the zoning shall revert to the previous zoning.”

10. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
a) Radio Users Advisory Committee Re-appointment representing E-911

b) Radio Users Advisory Committee Re-appointment representing the Fire
Chief’s Association

¢) Richburg Fire Protection District Re-appointment
Councilman John Agee, District 1

3|Page



d) Board of Assessment Appeals Appointment
Councilman Bobby Raines, District 3

e) Chester County Library Board Appointment
Councilman Mike Vaughn, District 2

11.EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location or expansion of industries:

1.

2.
3.
4

Project P2480
Project P2492
Project P2493
Project P2501

b) Receipt of legal advice regarding a capital project sales tax commission and referendum

12.ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) Action taken regarding:
1.

2.
3.
4

Project P2480
Project P2492
Project P2493
Project P2501

b) Action taken regarding capital project sales tax commission and referendum

13. COUNCIL COMMENTS

14.ADJOURN

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of
SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County
Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Guidelines for Addressing Council

Citizens Comments:

Each citizen will be limited to three minutes.

When introduced:

Approach the podium, state your name and address.
Speak loudly and clearly, making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. Stray from the subject.

Do not address the audience - direct all comments to Council.

Do not approach the Council table unless directed.

Public Hearings:

Each speaker will be limited to three minutes.

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you:
Use profanity.

Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.

4|Page



Chester County Council Meeting

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 | 6:00 PM

MINUTES

Present: Chairman Pete Wilson, Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Bobby
Raines, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilman John Agee, County Administrator Brian Hester, County
Attorney Nicole Workman, Clerk to Council Kristie Donaldson

Absent: Councilman Guy (prior notification)

1.

2.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order and confirmed a quorum of council present at 6pm.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

The allegiance was recited and invocation given by Councilman Vaughn.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION OF J. MITCHELL GRAHAM AWARD

Bill Robinson, SC Association of Counties President

Mr. Bill Robinson presented the J. Mitchell Graham Memorial Award to Chester County. He recognized the
county's project "Enhancing Emergency Response: Leveraging Technology for Coordinated Effort to Protect
Schools" as the 2024 award winner. Mr. Robinson highlighted how the project involved mobilizing 10
different agencies and developing a mobile app to manage 30 different incidents across the county. He
praised the project's innovation and community impact, describing it as a shining example of best
practices in local government. Robinson congratulated the council and Emergency Management team for
their efforts in implementing this successful project.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) February 3,2025 Council Meeting Minutes

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve.
b) February 10,2025 Council Workshop Minutes

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.

. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS

None

PUBLIC HEARING

Chairman Wilson opened the public hearing and noted that a speaker signed up to speak in regard to
item e (Ordinance 2025-5).

a) Ordinance 2025-1 An ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of not exceeding
$250,000 fire protection district improvement revenue bonds of Chester County, South
Carolina, for the purpose of defraying the cost of improvements to the Richburg Fire
Protection District; prescribing the form and details of the bond; providing for the
payment of the principal of and interest on the bond from the revenues derived from
the operation of the system; providing for the acceptance and administration of grants
and donations; creating and establishing certain funds and accounts; and making other
covenants and agreements in connection with the foregoing; and other related matters.

1|Page



b) Ordinance 2025-2 An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of
tax agreement by and between Chester County, and P2280; the inclusion of certain real
property located in Chester County in a multi-county industrial park; the provision of
credits against fee in lieu of tax payments; the execution and delivery of such
documents as may be necessary to effect the intent of this ordinance; and other matters
related thereto.

¢) Ordinance 2025-3 An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of
tax and special source revenue credit agreement by and between Chester County and
Project P2285; providing for a fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes incentive; providing for a
special source revenue credit; creating or modifying a joint county industrial and
business park agreement between Chester County and York County so as to establish or
enlarge the park; and other related matters.

d) Ordinance 2025-4 An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of an
infrastructure credit agreement by and between Chester County and Project P2443,
including any related or affiliated entities and any sponsor affiliates, whereby Chester
County will enter into an infrastructure credit arrangement with the company; and
providing for other related matters.

e) Ordinance 2025-5 An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of
tax agreement by and between Chester County, and Project P2373; the inclusion of
certain real property located in Chester County in a multi-county industrial park; the
provision of credits against fee in lieu of tax payments; the execution and delivery of
such documents as may be necessary to effect the intent of this ordinance; and other
matters related thereto
Janet Robinson (564 Ecology Ln.), Director of Government Affairs and Communications for
Princeton New Energy, addressed council. She thanked the council for their support and provided
an update on Princeton New Energy's project in Chester County. Ms. Robinson explained that the
company had held a groundbreaking last June and their equipment had since arrived and was
being assembled inside the factory. She stated that the company would be processing advanced
black mass for lithium-ion batteries, primarily from dry manufacturing scrap. Ms. Robinson
expressed excitement about the project's progress and looked forward to welcoming the council to
the commissioning in the near future.

7. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS

a) 2" Reading of Ordinance 2025-6
An ordinance to dissolve the Chester County Rural Fire Board; to create the Chester
County Fire Service Board; to provide for the governance; to create the purpose and
implementation; to define the authority and scope; and other related matters.
Administrator Hester provided some clarifications and proposed amendments to Ordinance 2025-6
at the meeting. Mr. Hester explained that he had gone and spoken with the Chiefs Association,
reading through the ordinance word-for-word and explaining some areas in detail. This helped to
alleviate some of the initial concerns about the ordinance. Administrator Hester then proposed two
specific changes. First, he suggested adding a sentence to Section 5.02 stating that the
appointment of a fire department representative to the board should follow the department’s rank

2|Page



8.

structure, if feasible. Secondly, he proposed changing the timeline in Section 6.04 from 30 days to 7
days for the fire service board to forward meeting minutes to the county council. Mr. Hester
indicated that the changes were more of administrative changes intended to provide clarification
and improve the efficiency of the process.

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2025-6 with amendments
of 5.02 and 6.04, seconded by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.

b) Resolution 2025-5 Providing for changes to the county employee/personnel handbook
relating to parental leave, professional conduct and workplace relationships,
recruitment procedures, holidays, and annual leave; and providing for other related
matters.

Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve.

c) Resolution 2025-6 To Gift the Service Weapon to Deputy Charles McKenzie
Councilman Agee motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve.

d) Consideration of Woodhaven Phase | Bond Reduction
Attorney Michael Kozlarek addressed items D and E together, which involved the bond reduction
for Woodhaven Phase One and the approval of the Woodhaven Phase Two bond. Mr. Kozlarek
explained that any public infrastructure, such as roads, water, and sewer, was required by state
law to be bonded, whether the county was doing the work directly or it was part of a development
project. Mr. Kozlarek stated that the payment and performance bonds ensured that if the
contractor defaulted on the work or payments, the bonding company would step in to complete
the infrastructure. He noted that the bond amounts had been reviewed by a professional engineer
and presented to the zoning administrator before being brought to the council for approval, as
required by the county's land use regulations. Attorney Kozlarek also mentioned that many local
governments handled these types of administrative bond approvals within the planning or zoning
department, rather than bringing them to the council level, which was something the council may
have wanted to consider as a policy going forward.

Councilman Agee motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve.

e) Consideration of Woodhaven Phase Il Bond Approval

Councilman Agee motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve.
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
Administrator Hester informed the council that the landfill transfer station would be closed from February
20-24 for new concrete installation. During this time, reqular garbage pickup would continue, and the
recycling centers would operate normally, with a backup plan to take the waste directly to Lancaster or
Columbia if needed. Mr. Hester also shared that the Dawson Drive baseball complex donation from Springs
was moving forward, with the county currently completing a phase one environmental study on the
property before finalizing the land acquisition. Additionally, he noted that a special called CTC meeting
would be held on March 3 to discuss DOT road funds and select additional roads to meet the 25%
requirement. Regarding capital projects, Administrator Hester reported that the Lewis Fire Station had
reached substantial completion, with only minor landscaping items remaining, and the Rodman Sports
Complex was on track for mid-June completion, despite some weather-related delays. He also stated that
the new animal shelter project was scheduled to start on February 25 and be completed within 360 days.
Lastly, Hester mentioned that Emergency Management Director Ed Darby was closely monitoring the
weather for any potential winter weather impacts.
CONSENT AGENDA
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve.

3|Page



39 Reading of CCMA24-16 Antwon Caldwell request Tax Map #079-05-10-005-000 located
at 590 Beltline Road, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from General Commercial District
(GC) to Single Family Residential District (RS-1). The Planning Commission voted 5-0 to
approve.

34 Reading of Ordinance 2025-1

An ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of not exceeding $250,000 fire
protection district improvement revenue bonds of Chester County, South Carolina, for
the purpose of defraying the cost of improvements to the Richburg Fire Protection
District; prescribing the form and details of the bond; providing for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the bond from the revenues derived from the operation of
the system; providing for the acceptance and administration of grants and donations;
creating and establishing certain funds and accounts; and making other covenants and
agreements in connection with the foregoing; and other related matters.

3 Reading of Ordinance 2025-2

An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by
and between Chester County, and P2280; the inclusion of certain real property located
in Chester County in a multi-county industrial park; the provision of credits against fee
in lieu of tax payments; the execution and delivery of such documents as may be
necessary to effect the intent of this ordinance; and other matters related thereto.

3 Reading of Ordinance 2025-4

An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of an infrastructure credit
agreement by and between Chester County and Project P2443, including any related or
affiliated entities and any sponsor affiliates, whereby Chester County will enter into an
infrastructure credit arrangement with the company; and providing for other related
matters.

3" Reading of Ordinance 2025-5

An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by
and between Chester County, and Project P2373; the inclusion of certain real property
located in Chester County in a multi-county industrial park; the provision of credits
against fee in lieu of tax payments; the execution and delivery of such documents as
may be necessary to effect the intent of this ordinance; and other matters related
thereto.

2" Reading of Ordinance 2025-3

An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and special
source revenue credit agreement by and between Chester County and Project P2285;
providing for a fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes incentive; providing for a special source
revenue credit; creating or modifying a joint county industrial and business park
agreement between Chester County and York County so as to establish or enlarge the
park; and other related matters.

4|Page



10.OLD BUSINESS

a) FROM CCTC:

1. Reimbursement approval for Road and Sign Materials to the Chester County
Roads Department in the amount of $98,634.42
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to
approve.

2. Consideration of usage of One-Time Monies in the amount of $100,000 to fund
small projects
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to
approve.

11.NEW BUSINESS

a) Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Report
Tommy Darby, Treasurer
Tommy Darby, the County Treasurer, presented the fiscal year 2024 audit report to the council.
Darby began by stating that the county had received an unmodified opinion, which is the highest
opinion that can be given on a set of financial statements. He also noted that the audit had been
submitted on time by the January 1 deadline. Mr. Darby then shared the county's strong financial
position, with a total fund balance of $18.3 million and an additional $2.8 million in capital
reserves, for a total fund balance of $21.1 million. Darby expressed his gratitude to the finance staff
for their hard work and long hours in preparing for the audit. He also mentioned that the county
had put a fund balance policy in place a few years ago, and this year they were able to contribute
$1.1 million to the capital reserve fund. After Darby's introduction, he invited the auditor, Marc
Wood, to provide a detailed presentation on the various aspects of the audit report, highlighting
the county's strong financial management and compliance. Marc Wood, auditor with Sheheen
Hancock, and Godwin LLC, presented the details of the fiscal year 2024 audit report to the council.
Mr. Wood began by stating that the county had received an unmodified opinion, which was the
highest opinion that could be given on a set of financial statements. He noted that the audit had
been submitted on time this year, as it was Wood's second year working with the county. Mr. Wood
then walked through the key financial information from the report. He stated that the county's
total assets were $43.2 million, with total liabilities of $24.8 million, leaving a fund balance of $18.3
million. For the proprietary funds, the total assets and deferred outflows were $3.9 million, with
total liabilities of $2.3 million, resulting in a net position of $1.5 million. Mr. Wood praised the work
of the county administrator, Brian Hester, and the finance staff, including Tommy Darby, Liz, and
Haley, for their responsiveness and hard work in supporting the audit process. He acknowledged
that the audit could be disruptive to their daily operations, but the staff had been very helpful in
providing the necessary information. Mr. Wood concluded that the county should be very pleased
with the audit results, which demonstrated strong financial management and compliance.
12. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

13.EXECUTIVE SESSION

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to enter executive session, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to enter
executive session.

5|Page



a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of
services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area
served by the public body - Vista Resources, LLC

b) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of
services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area
served by the public body - Project P2493

14. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to return to regular session, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to return
to regular session.
a) 1% Reading of Ordinance 2025-7 (Title Only)
Approving the execution and delivery of a development agreement between the County
and Vista Resources, LLC; and providing for other related matters.
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2025-7, seconded by Vice
Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve.
b) Action taken regarding Project P2493
Chairman Wilson stated Project P2493 was taken as information only.
15. COUNCIL COMMENTS
None

16. ADJOURN
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to adjourn, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.

7:54pm
Kristie Donaldson
Clerk to County Council

6|Page



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-6

TO DISSOLVE THE CHESTER COUNTY RURAL FIRE BOARD;
TO CREATE THE CHESTER COUNTY FIRE SERVICE BOARD;
TO PROVIDE FOR THE GOVERNANCE; TO CREATE THE
PURPOSE AND IMPLEMENTATION; TO DEFINE THE
AUTHORITY AND SCOPE; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), acting by and through its County Council
(“County Council”), is empowered by the provisions of the South Carolina Constitution and the South
Carolina Code Annotated, for example, South Carolina Code Annotated sections 4-9-30(6), et seq., to
provide for the dissolution, modification and establishment of agencies, departments, boards, commissions
and positions as may be necessary to provide proper services of local concern for public purposes;

WHEREAS, the County previously created the Board of Rural Fire Control for Chester County, which
is often referred to as Rural Fire Board (“Rural Fire Board”), for the purpose of fire protection and control
to study and survey the fire protection and control problems in the County formulate a comprehensive plan
of fire control, to obtain the maximum fire control at minimum cost to the taxpayers of the county, and
establish appropriate fire response areas as codified the creation and operation of the Rural Fire Board in
Chester Code of Ordinances Division 4, section 2-354, et seq.;

WHEREAS, to enhance transparency of financial decisions regarding the allocation of county fire
funds, thereby enhancing services to taxpayers, and eliminating duplication of services in order to provide
the residents of the County with quality fire protection services, the County intends to abolish and dissolve
the Board of Rural Fire Control for Chester County (“Rural Fire Board”) and establish Chester County Fire
Service Board (“Fire Service Board” or “Board”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:

1.0 Implementation
1.01 Authority to establish the Chester County Fire Service Board

Pursuant to the County Council’s general designation of power to provide for the public health, safety, and
general welfare of residents of the County by establishing agencies, departments, boards, commissions and
positions to provide services of local concern for public purposes. The Council may establish the functions
of each board and commission and is tasked with regulating the created entity pursuant to the provisions of
South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30(6), et seqg. Councils may abolish, merge or modify said
agencies, departments, boards, commissions and positions as appropriate to meet the needs of the County.

Furthermore, the County Council shall provide for the appointment of certain boards, committees, and
commissions by adopting an ordinance when such is not provided by general law or the Constitution
pursuant to South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-170.

2.0 Establishment and Purpose of Fire Service Board; dissolution of Rural Fire Board

2.01 The County Council adopts this Ordinance creating the Chester County Fire Service Board, to
incorporate the functions and responsibilities of the Rural Fire Board, thereby streamlining



2.02

2.03

2.04

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

governance and improving decision-making processes.

The County Council intends that the Fire Service Board created by this Ordinance be empowered
to collaborate on strategic use of resources to best serve our community’s fire service needs and
allow communication to seamlessly flow to Chester County Fire and County Council.

The Fire Service Board shall focus efforts on improving and maintaining nationally recognized
standards and improving transparency as to fiduciary information.

The County Council dissolves and abolishes the Rural Fire Board to be immediately reconstituted
as the Fire Service Board as set forth in this Ordinance.

3.0 Authority and Scope

All County funds allocated to each fire district will be mandated to go through Chester County
Fire. This centralization of purchasing authority is designed to ensure accountability, adherence
to regulatory standards, follow procurement policies, and optimal use of taxpayer resources.

The Fire Service Board will be presented with past data, projected data and growth, projected
budgets and other resources to properly analyze and drive decisions when preparing a budget or
long-term goals for the betterment of the entire County.

Any vehicle purchased with County allocated funds or insured by the County shall be owned by
and properly titled in the name of the County and shall not be subject to disposal or sale without
the approval of Council;

The Chester County Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Response Team is incorporated with the
Fire Service Board. The Board may adopt rules and regulations for administration and discharge
of the duties imposed upon it by law.

4.0 Duties
4.01 Fire Service Board will be responsible for the following:

. Preparing an annual assessment of fire protection services in the County including a
budget designed to meet those needs for presentation to Council;

. Recommend priorities of fire service needs and creating a comprehensive plan as to
replacement of equipment and apparatus after review of data;

. Establish ad hoc committees, formed by members of the Fire Service Board, for
advisory on specific item(s) and findings shall be reported back to the Board;

. Establish minimal standards for county wide fire codes to provide guidance as to a
fine/fee schedule for false alarms, inspections and inspection violations;

. Establish policies, training standards, standard operating guidelines and procedures to
create parity amongst fire departments and promulgate such standards;

. Withdraw any county-owned equipment from any department that fails to meet the



standards prescribed by the Board concerning facilities and equipment and to
disapprove any purchase by a department not budgeted;

. Establish recruitment strategies and retention initiatives for volunteers and full-time
staff;

5.0 Governance

5.01 The body of the Fire Service Board does not have any powers or duties which would conflict with or
supersede the powers and duties of the County Council, the County Administrator, or any other boards or
commissions.

5.02 The Fire Service Board will consist of the twelve current fire chiefs of each department representing
a diverse array of experience and expertise within the fire service.

. If a fire chief steps down or is removed from the position of fire chief, the fire chief is
automatically removed from the Fire Service Board and the assistant fire chief shall
serve on the Fire Service Board, until a new fire chief is appointed. The assistant fire
chief should notify the Deputy Director of Chester County Fire as soon as reasonably
possible to bring the matter to the Fire Service Board’s attention during the next
meeting scheduled.

. In the event of a fire chief being unable to attend a regularly scheduled meeting, the
chief shall appoint an officer within the department to attend the meeting in his or her
place.

. If the fire chief is unable to serve on the board, the chief and district board shall

appoint an officer to represent the district and serve on the Fire Service Board. If
feasible, the officer appointed should follow the department’s rank structure. The
appointment shall be provided in writing to the Chairperson as notification of the
district’s appointment.

5.03 The Deputy Director of Chester County Fire will preside over the meetings as the Chairperson. The
Deputy Director will be allowed to vote in situations as to break a tie vote. In the event of the Deputy
Director of Chester County Fire service is vacated or incapacitated and unable to serve for an extended
period of time, the Chester County Emergency Services Director shall assume the responsibilities of the
Chairperson until the Deputy Director position is filled.

5.03(a) Responsibilities of Deputy Director as Chairperson for the Fire Service Board

e Provide collected and projected data to the Fire Service Board;

o Ensure all meeting dates, agendas and meeting minutes will be published by the
office of Emergency Services;

e Conduct meeting in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order, County
ordinances, and in accordance with Section 30-4-10 et seq. of the Code of Laws
of South Carolina of 1976 as amended, also known as the Freedom of
Information Act (“Act”), and as such is required to give public notice of its
meetings and agendas.

5.04 A vice chair shall be nominated and voted upon in the first meeting in July or as soon as possible



thereafter. The vice chair’s responsibilities include appointing members of the ad hoc committees and
conducting meetings in the absence of the Deputy Director of Chester County Fire. The vice chair shall
serve a term of two (2) years to run concurrent with the fiscal year.

5.05 A secretary will be provided by the County to take meeting minutes and satisfy all notice requirements.

6.0 Meetings

6.01 Meetings will be held on the first and third Thursday of each month, January to April. During the
months of May to December there will only be one meeting per month scheduled for the first Thursday
of the month.

6.02 To conduct business, a quorum of 7 must be present. Voting decisions will be based on a majority
vote for all recommendations and business.

6.03 Agenda requests shall be submitted to the Chairperson one week in advance of the regularly scheduled
meeting.

6.04 Upon approval of the meeting minutes by the Fire Service Board, the meeting minutes shall be
forwarded to County Council within seven (7) days.

7.0 Attendance

7.01 A member is subject to immediate removal following the unexcused absence from four (4) regularly
scheduled meetings during the twelve (12) month period. Absences due to sickness, bereavement,
vacation, unexpected duty related emergencies, and Family Medical Leave Act constitute excused
absences. The Board may vote to excuse any absence by simple majority.

7.02 In extreme circumstances, if a member of the Fire Service Board is removed due to excessive
absences, the Chairperson will report to the board of the district and request the district find a suitable
replacement to represent the interests of that department.

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW]
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Pete Wilson, Chair, County Council
Chester County, South Carolina
[SEAL]

Attest:

Kristie Donaldson, Clerk to County Council
Chester County, South Carolina

First Reading: February 3, 2025
Second Reading: February 18, 2025
Public Hearing: March 3, 2025

Third Reading: March 3, 2025



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-8

PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO.
2021-18, WHICH PROVIDED FOR THE USE OF EXCESS
FUNDING FOR “PROJECTS” AND/OR “CAPITAL PROJECTS”
AS PROVIDED FOR UNDER ORDINANCE NO. 2019-5; AND
PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council (“County Council”) enacted Ordinance No. 2019-5, on June 15,
2020 (“2019 Ordinance”), authorizing, among other things, the imposition of and expenditure from a capital
project sales and use tax, if and as approved by a referendum, to fund “projects” and/or “capital projects,”
each as described in the 2019 Ordinance and in the Capital Project Sales Tax Act, located in South Carolina
Code Annotated section 4-10-300, ¢f seq. (collectively, “Act”);

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council (“County Council”’) enacted Ordinance No. 2021-18, on
November 15,2021 (“2021 Otrdinance”), providing for excess funding to be used for certain “projects” and/or
“capital projects” as provided in the 2019 Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the Act provides the County Council with the authority to expend amounts collected in excess
of amounts necessary to complete (as described in the approving referendum) funding for projects listed in the
approving referendum to be used to complete projects for which the tax is imposed; and

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the County Council intends to continue to authorize such funding and
amend the nature of “projects” and/or “capital projects” (as described in the 2019 Otdinance) for which such
excess funding may be used.

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows:

Section 1. Amendments. “Section 1. Amendments.” of the 2021 Ordinance is amended by striking the
paragraph, in its entirety, after the word “Amendments” and inserting therein the following:

The County Council authorizes amounts collected in excess of amounts necessary to
complete (as described in the approving referendum) funding for each of the projects
referenced in the approving referendum to be used to provide funding for each of the
following projects

a. Project 1: Lewis Fire Department South Fork Substation,

b. Project 2: North Chester Fire Department Substation,

c. Projects 3/6 Rodman Sports Complex Improvements,

d. Project 16: Countywide Emergency Communications Project, and

e. Project 26: Great Falls Whitewater, Trails and State Park Visitors Center,

provided, however, that, to the extent funding to complete a project listed above is
sourced from other monies, then (a) no funding shall come from the tax imposed by
the approving referendum and/or (b) funding from the tax previously expended shall
be reimbursed to the tax fund from the alternate source.

Section 2. Authorization for County Officials to Execute Documents. The Council authorizes the
County Administrator, the County Treasurer, and Cletk to County Council to execute and consent to
documents and instruments as may be necessary to effect this Ordinance’s intent.



Section 3. Reservation to County. None of this Ordinance, the 2021 Ordinance, or the 2019 Ordinance
is a contract with any entity. The County reserves the right to amend this Ordinance, the 2021 Ordinance,
and/or the 2019 Ordinance, at any time, from time to time, as often as the County, in its sole discretion, deems
appropriate.

Section 4. General Repealer. Each ordinance, resolution, order, policy, or similar directive, or any patt
of the same, in conflict with this Ordinance is, to the extent of that conflict, repealed.

Section 5. Savings Clause. Any action taken or authorized to be taken under the 2021 Ordinance and/or
the 2019 Ordinance is treated as remaining in full force and effect for the purpose of sustaining any pending
or vested right, as of the effective date of this Ordinance, and for the enforcement of rights, duties, and liabilities
as they stood under the repealed or amended portion of the 2021 and/or the 2019 Ordinance.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its public hearing and third reading.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK]



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:
Pete Wilson, Chairman
Chester County Council

[SEAL]

Attest:

Kristie Donaldson
Clerk to County Council

First Reading: March 3, 2025
Second Reading: March 17, 2025
Public Hearing: April 7, 2025

Third Reading: April 7, 2025















SECTION 00 50 01

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

OWNER: Chester County
(Name)
PROJECT: Town of Great Falls CPST Visitors Center

Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. Project No. 23104-0012

TO ALL BIDDERS

This is to notify all bidders that it is the intent of the owner to award a contract as follows:

NAME OF J. M. Cope, Inc.

BIDDER:

DATES BIDS WERE December 12, 2024

RECEIVED:

AMOUNT OF BASE BID: $ 2,624,000

The owner has determined that the above named bidder is responsible and has submitted the
lowest responsive bid. The owner may enter into a contract with this bidder subject to the contract
review.

(PRINT OR TYPE NAME) (AWARD AUTHORITY TITLE)

(SIGNATURE) (DATE POSTED)

POST A COPY OF THIS FORM AT THE LOCATION ANNOUNCED AT BID OPENING

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD
23104-0012 00 50 01-1 December 2024



SECTION 00 50 01

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

OWNER: Chester County
(Name)
PROJECT: Town of Great Falls CPST Visitors Center

Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. Project No. 23104-0012

TO ALL BIDDERS

This is to notify all bidders that it is the intent of the owner to award a contract as follows:

NAME OF J. M. Cope, Inc.

BIDDER:

DATES BIDS WERE December 12, 2024

RECEIVED:

AMOUNT OF BASE BID: $ 2,624,000

The owner has determined that the above named bidder is responsible and has submitted the
lowest responsive bid. The owner may enter into a contract with this bidder subject to the contract
review.

(PRINT OR TYPE NAME) (AWARD AUTHORITY TITLE)

(SIGNATURE) (DATE POSTED)

POST A COPY OF THIS FORM AT THE LOCATION ANNOUNCED AT BID OPENING

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD
23104-0012 00 50 01-1 December 2024



SECTION 00 50 01

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

OWNER: Chester County
(Name)
PROJECT: Town of Great Falls CPST Visitors Center

Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. Project No. 23104-0012

TO ALL BIDDERS

This is to notify all bidders that it is the intent of the owner to award a contract as follows:

NAME OF J. M. Cope, Inc.

BIDDER:

DATES BIDS WERE December 12, 2024

RECEIVED:

AMOUNT OF BASE BID: $ 2,624,000

The owner has determined that the above named bidder is responsible and has submitted the
lowest responsive bid. The owner may enter into a contract with this bidder subject to the contract
review.

(PRINT OR TYPE NAME) (AWARD AUTHORITY TITLE)

(SIGNATURE) (DATE POSTED)

POST A COPY OF THIS FORM AT THE LOCATION ANNOUNCED AT BID OPENING

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD
23104-0012 00 50 01-1 December 2024


















CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-7

APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY
AND VISTA RESOURCES, LLC; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER
RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, according to the provisions of the South Carolina Local Government Development
Agreement Act, codified in South Carolina Code Annotated section 6-31-10, ez seg. (collectively, “Act”), and
Chester County Ordinance No. 2021-12, as amended by Ordinance No. 2023-12 (collectively, “Development
Agreement Ordinance”), the Chester County Council (“County Council”), as the governing body of Chester
County, South Carolina (“County”) is authorized to enter into development agreements to provide for the
County’s development;

WHEREAS, the County adopts and incorporates by reference as if fully stated herein in their entirety the
County’s findings from the Development Agreement Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the County Planning Director has reviewed the proposed development agreement for the
referenced project (“Development Agreement”), the substantially final form of which is attached to this
Ordinance as Exhibit A, and which is incorporate herein by reference as if fully stated herein in its entirety and
has confirmed to the Development Agreement Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. Incorporation of Findings. The County hereby adopts and incorporates the findings contained
in “WHEREAS” clauses above.

Section 2. Development Agreement Requirements. The County finds the Development Agreement
meets the requirements of the Act and the Development Agreement Ordinance.

Section 3. Development Agreement Approval. According to the authority provided by the Act and the
Development Agreement Ordinance, the Development Agreement, attached as Exhibit A, which is now before
this meeting, is approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein
by reference as if such Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of the
County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be, and they are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the Development Agreement in the name and on behalf of the
County, and thereupon to cause the Development Agreement to be delivered to the developer. The
Development Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or
with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder, or otherwise
constitute a major or moderate modification as provided in the form of the Development Agreement, and
which shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the County executing the same, their
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of all changes therein from the form of
Development Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 4. Additional Provisions.
(a) The Chairman and all other appropriate officials of the County are hereby authorized to execute, deliver,
and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required by the County to carry out, give effect to and

consummate the transactions authorized by this Ordinance;

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South
Carolina;

PAGE 1 0F 32



() This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following third reading by the County
Council;

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance ate hereby declared to be severable and if any section, phrase, or
provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, that
declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder; and

(e) All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the conflict, hereby
repealed.

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW]
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK]

PAGE 2 OF 32



[SEAL]

Attest:

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Kristie Donaldson
Clerk to County Council

First Reading: February 18, 2025
Second Reading: March 3, 2025
Public Hearing: March , 2025
Third Reading: March , 2025
Public Hearing: March [], 2025

Pete Wilson
Chair, County Council

PAGE 3 OF 32



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (PROJECT VISTA)

(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDING USE)

SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
) VISTA DEVELOPMENT
CHESTER COUNTY )

This DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is enteted as of April [], 2025 (“Agreement
Date”), by and among VISTA RESOURCES, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (“Developer”),
and the CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (“County”), a body politic and corporate, a political
subdivision of the State of South Carolina (“State”), each a “Party,” collectively “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Developer owns legal title to certain real property consisting of approximately 45.091
acres, located in the County and known as Vista Development and more fully described in Section 1.04 of this
Agreement (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the County has rezoned the Property a PD (Planned Development) District; and

WHEREAS, the Developer and the County have determined that it is in the best interests of the County
and the Developer to enter this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions of the development to achieve
a well-coordinated, master planned development, reasonably mitigate any project impacts to the community
and achieve predictability to the County and the Developer on the scope and terms of the development; and

WHEREAS, The Developer desires to obtain from the County in connection with the development, and
County is willing to provide, assurances: (1) that the Property is zoned a PD (Planned Development) District
for the duration of this Agreement, (2) that at receipt of the Developer’s development and construction permits,
the Developer may proceed with the planned development and construction, and (3) that the Development
Rights (defined below) will be vested for the duration of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the proposed development, the Developer and the County recognize that
the scope and term of the planned development under this Agreement accomplish the statutory aims of
comprehensive, ordetly planning and development in the County, thus providing benefits to the citizens of the
County and providing public benefits through, among other things, the donation of funds or financing of those
public facilities and services described and identified in this Agreement:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being acknowledged by the parties, and pursuant
to the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, codified in South Carolina Code
Annotated sections 6-31-10 through and including 6-31-160, as amended (collectively, “Act”) and Chester

PAGE 4 OF 32



County Ordinance No. 2021-12, as amended by Ordinance No. 2023-12 (collectively, “Development
Agreement Ordinance”), the parties to this Agreement, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

Section 1.01. Incorporation. The above recitals are incorporated in this Agreement as if the recitals were
set out in this Agreement in its entirety. The findings contained in the Act are incorporated into this Agreement
as if it were set out in this Agreement in its entirety.

Section 1.02. Definitions.

(A) In addition to those vest pocket definitions contained throughout this Agreement, as used in this
Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings:

1 “County Council” means the governing body of Chester County, South Carolina.

2 “Development Rights” means the right of the Developer to develop all or part of the Property
in accordance with this Agreement.

3) “Development Agreement Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 2021-12, as amended by
Otdinance No. 2023-12, of County which is referred to as the development agreement ordinance for
Chester County, South Carolina.

4 “UDO” means Ordinance No. [|, as amended to be the most current adopted version on file
with the County.

(B) Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the
meanings set forth in the Act, the Development Agreement Ordinance, and/or the UDO, as applicable.

Section 1.03. Parties. The Parties to this Agreement are the County and the Developer.

Section 1.04. Property. This Agreement applies to three (3) parcels of land identified as Chester County,
South Carolina Tax Map Nos. 079-01-17-013-000, 078-01-01-034-000, and 079-01-17-018-000, which is also
referred to as the Property and reflected on Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein by reference
as if the exhibit were set out in this Agreement in its entirety.

Section 1.05. Zoning. The Property is currently zoned PD (Planned Development) pursuant to Ordinance
Nos. 2024-[], 2024-[], and 2024-[].

Section 1.06. Development Program.

(A) The UDO provides for the development uses on the Property, including population densities, building
intensities and height.

(B) All lots for the Development must meet all standards contained in the most current version of the
UDO unless otherwise modified by this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the standards contained
in the UDO and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement control. The Development Program for the
Property is set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if the exhibit were
set out in this Agreement in its entirety

Section 1.07. Development Schedule.

PAGE 5 OF 32



(A) The estimated development schedule for the Property is set forth on Exhibit C, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as if the exhibit were set out in this Agreement in its entirety.

(B) The County and the Developer acknowledge that the development schedule is an estimate. The failure
of the Developer to meet a commencement or completion date does not, in and of itself, constitute a material
breach of this Agreement, but must be judged based on the totality of the circumstances. The development
schedule is a planning and forecasting tool only. The County and the Developer acknowledge that actual
development is likely to take place at a different pace than set forth in the development schedule because of
future market forces.

(C) The County agrees that if the Developer requests an adjustment to the development schedule, including
commencement dates and interim completion dates, then the dates must be modified if the Developer is able
to demonstrate and establish that there is good cause to modify those dates. “Good cause” includes, but is not
limited to, changes in market conditions, provided, however, under no circumstances shall commencement of
construction occur on or after a date that is 18 months after the Agreement Date.

(D) Periodic adjustments to the development schedule do not require a formal amendment to this
Agreement and are not considered a major modification. To adjust the development schedule, the Developer
shall submit a proposed adjustment in writing, substantially in the form of Exhibit F attached hereto, to the
Planning Director for the County who shall forward copies of the proposed adjustment to each member of
County Council. The proposed adjustment shall include an explanation and justification. The proposed
adjustment shall become effective 45 days from receipt by the Planning Director for the County unless County
Council has disapproved the proposed adjustment by adoption of a resolution to that effect within the 45-day
period.

Section 1.08. Relationship of Parties. This Agreement creates a contractual relationship between the
Parties. This Agreement is not intended to create, and does not create the relationship of partnership, joint
venture, or any other relationship wherein any one of the parties may be held responsible for the acts of any
other party. This Agreement is not intended to create and does not create a relationship whereby any one of
the Parties may be rendered liable in any manner for the debts or obligations of any other party, to any person,
firm, corporation, or entity whatsoever, whether the debt or obligation arises under this Agreement or outside
of this Agreement.

Section 1.09. Benefits and Burdens.

(A) The Parties agree that the burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of this
Agreement shall inure to, all successors in interests to the Parties to this Agreement.

(B) Except for the owners and lessees of completed residences on individual lots who are the end users
and not the Developers thereof and the owners and lessees of individual lots, who are not the Developers and
who intend to build a residence on the lot for the owner or lessee to occupy, any purchaser or other successor
in title is responsible for performance of the Developet’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement as to the
portion of the Property so transferred. The Developer must give notice to County of the transfer of property
to a Developer in the manner prescribed in section 3.05.

(C) The Developer acknowledges and agrees that it and its successors and assigns (i) are responsible for
the development of the Property, (ii) will develop the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and (iif) acknowledge agricultural activities, including, but not limited to, production of crops,
animal husbandry, land application of animal waste, the raising, breeding, and sale of livestock and poultry,
including confinement feeding operations, use of farm machinery, and the sale of farm products may be
practiced and take place in the area of the Property. The Developer stipulates and will include such notice of
agricultural activities in the homeowners’ association documents and restrictive covenants for the Property so

PAGE 6 OF 32



all subsequent owners are aware of such agricultural activities. The Developer shall remain fully vested with all
of the rights, benefits, and privileges arising out of this Agreement during the Term of this Agreement except
as may be assigned for assumed from time to time consistent with this Agreement.

Section 1.10. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Agreement Date and terminate
10 years thereafter as provided herein or by the Act; provided, however that the Developer and the County may
extend the Term of this Agreement or enter into subsequent development agreements upon mutual written
consent to the extent permitted by the Act.

The expiration of the Term of this Agreement shall have no effect on the validity or authority of any
restrictive covenants except as may be specifically provided for therein.

Section 1.11. Required Information. The Development Agreement Ordinance, requires a development
agreement to include certain information. Exhibit D contains the required information or identifies where the
information may be found in this Agreement. Exhibit D is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference
as if the exhibit were set out in this Agreement in its entirety.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties of County.

(A) The County has found that the development permitted by this Agreement is consistent with County’s
comprehensive plan and UDO.

(B) The County has approved this Agreement by adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-[] in accordance with
the procedural requirements of the Act, the Development Agreement Ordinance, and any other applicable state
law.

(C) The County represents that prior to the final reading of Ordinance No. 2025-[] that at least two (2)
public hearings were held after publication of the required notice and the publication of a notice of intent to
consider a proposed development agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties of The Developer.

(A) The Developer represents that the number of acres of highland contained in the Property is
approximately 45.091 acres.

(B) The Developer represents that, as of the Agreement Date, it owns legal title to the Property.

(C) The Developer represents and warrants that the execution, delivery, and performance by the respective
individual or entity signing this Agreement on behalf of the party has been duly authorized and approved by all
requisite action on the part of the Developer.

ARTICLE III
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Section 3.01. Vested Right to Develop.
(A) The County agrees that the Developer, upon receipt of its development permits as identified in section
3.04, may proceed to develop the Property according to this Agreement and the UDO. The right of the

Developer to develop the Property as set forth in this Agreement is deemed vested with the Developer for the
term of this Agreement when the Developer has complied with all requirements of section 5.19 of this

PAGE 7 OF 32



Agreement.

(B) The County agrees that the specific Laws and Land Development Regulations in force as of the
Agreement Date as set forth in Exhibit E to this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated hetrein by
reference as if the exhibit were set out in this Agreement in its entirety, shall govern all aspects of the
development of the Property, according to this Agreement, for the term of this Agreement.

(C) The Developer has a vested right to proceed with the development of the Property in accordance with
the zoning classification set forth in the Development Agreement Ordinance, the UDO and the terms of this
Agreement if and only if the Developer has complied with all the requirements of section 5.19 of this
Agreement.

(D) To the extent that this Agreement may contain zoning and development standards which conflict with
existing zoning and development standards, including zoning and development standards contained in the
UDO, the standards contained in this Agreement supersede all other standards and this Agreement is deemed
controlling.

(E) The Developer acknowledges that the County shall not accept financial guarantees for water, sewer,
storm water, roadway, or recreation infrastructure and the water, sewer, storm water, roadway, and recreation
infrastructure must be installed, tested, and in acceptable condition or guaranteed with approved construction
bond(s), before final plat approval.

Section 3.02. Effect on Vested Rights Act and County Ordinance No. []. The Parties agree that vested
rights conferred upon the Developer in this Agreement are not affected by the provisions of the Vested Rights
Act, codified as South Carolina Code Annotated Section 6-29-1510 through and including Section 6-29-1560,
as amended, or the provisions of Ordinance No. [|, the County’s ordinance relating to the Vested Rights Act.

Section 3.03. Applicability of Subsequently Adopted Laws and Land Development Regulations.

(A) It is recognized that laws and regulations will periodically change. The County shall not enforce
subsequently adopted laws and land development regulations on the development of the Property except in
conformance with the procedures and provisions of Section 6-31-80(B) of the Act in effect as of the Effective
Date.

(B) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (A) of this Section, County agrees that if County imposes
a moratorium or other similar restriction that would curtail or hinder the rate at which development can occur,
then the moratorium or other similar restriction shall not apply to the Development of the Property. No
moratorium or schedule for allocation or approval of any development permits as set forth in Section 3.04
hereof, or any other subsequently adopted laws and land development regulations shall affect the rights and
prerogatives of the Developer under this Agreement except in conformance with Section 5.02 hereof.

(C) The Developer agrees to comply with any county-wide storm water regulations, building, housing,
electrical, plumbing, and gas codes adopted by County after the Agreement Date and in force at the time plans
for buildings are submitted to the County for review. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to supersede or
contravene the requirements of any storm water, building, housing, electrical, plumbing, or gas code adopted
by the County.

Section 3.04. Development Permits.
(A) Notwithstanding this Agreement, the Developer shall obtain all local development permits for the

development of the Property. Local development permits, approvals, and processes, some of which may have
been obtained or complied with as of the Agreement Date, may include, but are not limited to:

PAGE 8 OF 32



) Sketch Plan approval;

2 Preliminary plan approval;
3 Final plat approval;

@ Building permits; and

5) Sign permits.

(B) The failure of this Agreement to address a particular development permit, condition, term, or
restriction does not relieve the Developer of the necessity of complying with this Agreement, the law governing
the permitting requirements, conditions, terms, or restrictions, as may be applicable. The failure of this
Agreement to address a particular development permit does not abrogate the Development Rights arising out
of this Agreement where such development permit is customary or necessary for the development of the
Property, and consistent with the intent and purpose of this Agreement.

(C) With respect to the County’s review and processing of subdivision plats, development plan applications,
grading permits, building permits, certificates of occupancy and other County permits, applications and
approvals relating to the development of the Property (including dwellings and other improvements thereon),
the County shall approve or reject (and, in the case of a rejection, provide feedback necessary for the Developer
to resubmit any such submittals) within the time limitations as set forth in the County ordinances.

Section 3.05. Transfer of Real Property and Assignment of Development Rights.

(A) Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or constrain the Developer’s right to legally convey, sell, transfer,
ground lease, or otherwise dedicate any portion or all of the Property or an interest therein to any other person,
firm, corporation, or entity.

Together with any conveyance or transfer of interest in a portion or all of the Property, the Developer may
assign any portion or all of its Development Rights under this Agreement to such transferee or grantee,
provided, however, that the County as a result of the assignment does not release any current or subsequent
Developer from any or all of its obligations under this Agreement taking place or to have taken place as a
Developer during its ownership of the Property. If a purchaser, lessee, or other successor in interest of any
portion of the Property becomes a Developer under this Agreement, then the each current and subsequent
Developer remains, and the additional Developer becomes, responsible for the performance of the
development obligations and the additional Developer is entitled to the Development Rights appurtenant to
the portion of the Property so transferred, upon the recording with the Chester County Clerk of Court, together
with recording of the instrument transferring an interest in the Property, an Assignment substantially in the
form of Exhibit G attached hereto that (i) indicates the grantee’s or transferee’s acceptance of the development
obligations, and (ii) identifies the Development Rights assigned to the grantee or transferee, appurtenant to the
portion of the portion or all of the Property so assigned. The Developer may, at its sole discretion, retain those
certain Development Rights and development obligations with respect to the portion of Property conveyed or
transferred as may be more specifically set forth in the Assignment.

The Developer may transfer any or all Development Rights and/or development obligations to any person,
firm, corporation, or entity even in an absence of a transfer of portion of Property and shall be entitled to effect
a recording of an Assighment in accordance with this Section 3.05(A). Upon completion of the assignment, the
Property Owner agrees to notify the County of such transfer and provide information in connection therewith,
including the name, address and contact information for the transferee. This notification to the County shall
occur prior to notification to third parties and/or a public announcement of the transfer.

PAGE 9 OF 32



Any Developer shall be entitled to legally convey real property in accordance with this Agreement and to legally
assign its Development Rights and/or development obligations in accordance with this Section 3.05(A) in an
instrument substantially in the Form of Assignment attached hereto as Exhibit G.

(B) The recording requirement of an Assignment shall not apply to (i) any mortgage lender either as
the result of foreclosure of any mortgage secured by any portion of the Property or any other transfer in lieu of
foreclosure; (ii) any third party purchaser at such a foreclosure; or (iii) any third party purchaser of such
mortgage lender’s interest subsequent to the mortgage lender’s acquiring ownership of any portion of the
Property as set forth above. Any such mortgage lender or subsequent putrchaser shall be bound by the
development obligations and be a beneficiary of the Development Rights as the Developer successor in title to
the Developer.

(C) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Developer shall have the right to
manage its corporate affairs in such manner that may cause another person, firm, corporation, or entity,
including without limitation, the Developet’s subsidiaries and affiliates, to assume some or all of the Developet’s
Development Rights and/or development obligations pursuant to this Agreement (“Assumption”). The
provisions of Section 3.05(A) hereof pertaining to Assignment of Development Rights and development
obligations to the Developers shall not apply to an Assumption. Timely following any Assumption, the
Developer shall notify the County of the identity and address of the person, firm, corporation, or entity for the
purpose of Section 5.01 hereof, and such person, firm, corporation, or entity shall be substituted and considered
the Developer under this Agreement. Where an Assumption pertains only to a portion of the Developer’s
Development Rights and/or development obligations pursuant to this Agreement, the Developer shall also
notify the County of the extent to which the Development Rights and/or development obligations shall be
assumed.

ARTICLE IV
DEDICATIONS AND FEES AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

Section 4.01. Purpose of Article. The Parties understand and agree that Development of the Property
imposes certain burdens and costs on the County, including those for certain services and infrastructure
improvements. Eventually, ad valorem taxes collected from the Property may, but are not necessarily guaranteed
to, meet, or exceed the burdens and costs placed on the County, but certain initial costs and capital expenditures
are now required that are not to be funded by any increase in taxes paid by existing residents of the County.
The purpose of this article is to identify the matters agreed upon to be provided by the Developer to mitigate
such burdens and costs.

Section 4.02. Payment of Costs. In addition to any other fees for which this Agreement provides, the
Developer shall pay the County’s legal fees incurred with the preparation of this Agreement, various conferences
with County staff, and attendance at County meetings, and other related matters, in an amount not to exceed
$10,000. Such amount shall be paid within 30 days of the Developet’s receipt of an invoice for legal fees, which
shall contain a generic (non-privileged) description of the services performed but need not include individual
time entries and descriptions.

Section 4.03. Other Charges or Fees.

(A) The Property shall be subject to development and/or permit fees enacted by the County that ate in
effect on the Agreement Date, of County-wide application and that relate to the County’s costs of processing
applications, issuing development permits, reviewing plans, conducting inspections, or similat type processing
costs. The property shall not be subject to any additional development and/or permit fees enacted by the
County after the Agreement Date, however characterized.

(B) As may be adjusted according to Section 4.05, hereof, all single-family detached dwellings shall be

PAGE 10 OF 32



subject to a $5,000 development fee, payable by the building permit applicant to the County at the time of
issuance of the building permit.

Section 4.04. Infrastructure and Setvices. The Parties recognize that most of the direct costs associated
with the Development of the Property will be borne by the Developer, and many necessary infrastructure
improvements and services will be provided by the Developer or other governmental or quasi-governmental
entities, and not by the County. For clarification, the Parties make specific note of and acknowledge the
following:

(A) Roads. The Developer is responsible for the construction and costs of all roads, whether for public or
private use, within the Property including but not limited to any necessary entrance and intersection
improvements as required by the South Carolina Department of Transportation related to the development of
the Property. All roads must be constructed in accordance with the County’s road standards. The road
improvements are expected to be implemented on a schedule consistent with the development of the Property
as contained in the development schedule and as necessary to serve the development. The Developer is also
responsible for maintenance of all roads that are not public roads and shall provide notice of such ownership
and maintenance of all non-public roads as and no later than the date on which an individual lot is sold. The
Developer acknowledges that the County will only accept and maintain as public roads those roads constructed
in full compliance with the UDO and providing connectivity to the County road system or serving as a necessary
component for the proper development of the County road system. The County will not accept the roads within
the Property into the County road system for any other purpose, including, but not limited to, maintenance.
The Developer may transfer the ownership of the roads and its obligations for the roads to a homeowners’ or
property owners’ association or similar organization.

(B) Potable Water, Sewage Treatment, and Disposal. Potable water, sewage treatment and disposal will all
be supplied to the Property by one or more of the following: Chester Metropolitan District, Chester County
Wastewater Recovery, and/or some other public or private entity. The Developer will construct, ot cause to be
constructed, all necessary water and sewer service infrastructure within the Property and the water and sewer
service infrastructure will be maintained by the appropriate provider and not the County. The County is not
responsible for any construction, treatment, maintenance, or costs associated with water or sewer service or
water and sewer service infrastructure to or within the Property. The water and/or sewer service infrastructure
is expected to be implemented on a schedule consistent with the development of the Property as contained in
the development schedule and as necessary to serve the development. The Developer acknowledges that the
County has no authority or responsibility for providing potable water services or sewer services in the County
and that each service provider is a separate apart and distinct from the County over which the County has no
control.

(C) Storm Water Management. The Developer will construct or cause to be constructed all storm water
runoff and drainage improvements within the Property required by the development of the Property and such
infrastructure will be maintained by the Developer or a homeowners’ association. The County is not responsible
for any construction, maintenance or costs associated with the storm water runoff and drainage for the Property.
Storm water management improvements are expected to be implemented on a schedule consistent with the
development of the Property as contained in the development schedule and as necessaty to serve the
development.

(D) Solid Waste Collection. The County shall provide solid waste collection to the Property on the same
basis as is provided to other residents and businesses in the County. It is understood and acknowledged that
the County does not presently provide solid waste disposal for single, multi-family or commercial developments.
Residential units shall be served by a private waste hauling company.

(E) Fire Service, Emergency Medical Service, and Law Enforcement. The Property is in the Richburg fire
service area and fire services will be provided by the Richburg Fire Protection District, or its successor entities.

PAGE 11 oF 32



() School Services. Public school services are now provided by the Chester County School District. The
Developer acknowledges that the County has no authority or responsibility for providing public school services
in the County.

(G) Recreation Facilities. The Developer shall provide for the construction and maintenance of all
recreation facilities, which shall include a park and playground of, in aggregate, not less than 3.55 acres.

Section 4.05. County Improvement Grant. The County shall grant a portion of the impact fee
(described in Section 4.03(B), above) collected from the Developer, for each single-family detached dwelling
for which a certificate of occupancy is issued during the applicable time-frames of this Agreement, as follows
(a) $2,000, and (b) not to exceed $500, if, in the County Council’s sole discretion, the Developer has provided
for upgraded amenities and/or provided other aspects of superior development.

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 5.01. Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request or other communication to be provided
under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective (i) when delivered to the party named below, (ii)
when deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid,
or (iif) when deposited in Federal Express (or any other reputable national “next day” delivery service) addressed
as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the
other party), except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such
provision shall control:

To County: Chester County, South Carolina
Attn:  County Administrator
1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass (hand delivery/coutier service)
Post Oftice Box 580
Chester, South Carolina 29706

With a Copy to (does not constitute notice):

King Kozlarek Root Law LLC

Attn:  Michael E. Kozlarek, Esq.

201 Riverplace Suite 500 (hand delivery/courier service)
Post Office Box 565

Greenville, South Carolina 29602-0565

To The Developer: Vista Resources, LI.C
Attn: ]
[| (mail/hand delivery/coutier setvice)

[, 00

With a Copy to (does not constitute notice):

(1l

Attn: ]
[| (mail/hand delivery/coutier setvice)
[, 00

Section 5.02. Amendments.

PAGE 12 OF 32



(A) This Agreement may not be amended or cancelled in whole or in part except upon mutual consent of
the County and the Developer, and in compliance with the Act. An amendment to this Agreement must be in
writing. No statement, action or agreement made after the Agreement Date shall be effective to change, amend,
waive, modify, discharge, terminate or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such
statement, action or agreement is in writing and signed by the party against whom the change, amendment,
waiver, modification, discharge, termination, or abandonment is sought to be enforced.

(B) Any major modification of this Agreement shall constitute an amendment of this Agreement and may
occur only pursuant to the public notice and hearing requirements of the Act. Minor and moderate
modifications to this Agreement, enumerated in Exhibit B attached hereto, may be made without a public
hearing or an amendment of this Agreement upon mutual written consent of the County and the Developer. A
proposed modification not enumerated in Exhibit B shall be deemed a major modification.

(C) This Agreement must be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comply with any state or federal
laws or regulations enacted after the Agreement Date which prevents or precludes compliance with one or
more of the provisions of this Agreement but only to the extent necessary to effectuate compliance with the
state or federal law.

Section 5.03. Periodic Review. At least every 12 months, the Planning Director for the County, or the
designee of the Planning Director for the County, must review compliance with this Agreement by the
Developer. At the time of review the Developer must demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Section 5.04. Breach of Agreement.

(A) If, as a result of the periodic review provided in section 5.03 of this Agreement or at any other time,
the Planning Director for the County, or the Planning Director’s designee, determines that the Developer has
committed a breach of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, then the Planning Director for the County
shall serve notice in writing, within a reasonable time after the periodic review, on the Developer setting forth
with reasonable particularity the nature of the breach and the information supporting the determination, and
providing the Developer 60 days in which to cure or rectify said breach or account for those obligations
pursuant to this Agreement that have a material effect on the ability of the Developer to cure such breach.

(B) If the Developer fails to cure the breach within 60 days, or if the breach cannot be cured within such
60 days period and the Developer does not commence to cure the breach within such 60 days period, and
thereafter diligently pursue the same to completion, then the County may unilaterally terminate or modify this
Agreement; provided, that prior to terminating or modifying this Agreement as provided in this section, County
Council must first give the Developer the opportunity (i) to rebut the determination, or (if) to consent to amend
the Agreement to meet the County’s concerns with respect to the determination.

(C) Any other provision of this Agreement notwithstanding, should the Developer fail to (i) commence
construction at the Property no later than 18 months after the Agreement Date, (ii) fail to complete at least 52
single-family detached dwellings in 4 years from the Agreement Date, and/or (iii) fail to complete at least 114
single-family detached dwellings in 6 years from the Agreement Date, then the Property shall automatically,
without any further action of the County and/or the County Council, return to the zoning classification(s) in
existence immediately prior to the enactment of Ordinance Nos. 2024-[], 2024-[], and 2024-[].|

Section 5.05. Enforcement. The Parties shall each have the right to enforce this Agreement, if not cured
within the applicable cure period, by any remedy available at law or in equity, including specific performance,

and the right to recover attorney’s fees and costs associated with enforcement.

Section 5.06. No Third-Party Beneficiary. The provisions of this Agreement may be enforced only by

PAGE 13 OF 32



the Parties and their successors and assigns. No other persons, natural or corporate, shall have any rights
hereunder.

Section 5.07. Recording of Agreement. The Parties agree that the Developer shall record this Agreement
with the County Clerk of Court within 14 days after the date of execution of this Agreement.

Section 5.08. Administration of Agreement. The County is the only local government that is a party to
this Agreement and the County is responsible for the Agreement’s administration.

Section 5.09. Effect of Annexation and Incorporation. The Parties agree that this Agreement remains
in effect if the Property is, in whole or in part, included in any municipality. The Parties acknowledge that upon
incorporation or annexation the application and duration of this Agreement is controlled by section 6-31-110
of the Act. The County reserves the right to enter into an agreement with the newly incorporated municipality
or the annexing municipality for the administration and enforcement of this Agreement after the date of
incorporation or annexation.

Section 5.10. Estoppel Certificate. Any of the Parties may, at any time, and from time to time, deliver
written notice to the other party requesting the party to certify in writing: (i) that this Agreement is in full force
and effect, (ii) that this Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so amended, identifying the
amendments, and (iii) whether, to the knowledge of the party, without inquiry, the requesting party is in default
or claimed default in the performance of its obligation under this Agreement, and, if so, describing the nature
and amount, if any, of any such default or claimed default, and (iv) whether, to the knowledge of the party,
without inquiry, any event has occurred or failed to occur which, with the passage of time or the giving of
notice, or both, would constitute a default and, if so, specifying each such event.

Within 60 days of a receipt of a written request sent by the Developer to the County, the County shall issue
an estoppel certificate in recordable form that with regard to the portion or all of the Property described in the
request, and except as stated, to the best of the County’s knowledge, without any inquiry, there are no violations
or breaches of this Agreement. The estoppel certificate will be binding on the County in accordance with the
facts and statements contained therein as of its date and may be relied upon by all persons having notice thereof.
If the County does not respond to such request within 60 days of its receipt, the Property described in the
request shall be deemed in compliance with this Agreement.

Section 5.11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth, and incorporates by reference all the
agreements, conditions, and understandings among the Parties relative to the Property and its Development
and there are no promises, agreements, conditions, or understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied,
among the Parties relative to the matters addressed in this Agreement other than as set forth or as referred to
in this Agreement.

Section 5.12. Covenant to Sign other Documents. The County and the Developer acknowledge that
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement may require the execution
contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement and thereafter of certain documents in addition to
this Agreement, and the County and the Developer agree to cooperate with the execution thereof.

Section 5.13. Construction of Agreement. The Parties agree that each party and its counsel have reviewed
and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits
to this Agreement.

Section 5.14. Assignment. The rights, obligations, duties, and responsibilities devolved by this Agreement

on or to the Developer are assignable to any other person, firm, corporation, or entity except that the assignment
must conform to the requirements of Section 1.09 and Section 3.05 hereof. The County may assign its rights,

PAGE 14 OF 32



obligations, duties, and responsibilities devolved by this Agreement on or to the County to any other person,
firm, corporation, or entity.

Section 5.15. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; and Venue.
(A) This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of South Carolina.

(B) The Parties agree that jurisdiction and venue for disputes relating to this Agreement is the 6™ Judicial
Circuit of the State of South Carolina.

Section 5.16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts in original, facsimile,
or electronic means, provided such means of execution are sufficient for recording, each of which shall be
deemed an original, and such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 5.17. Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit, impair, or restrict the
County’s right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Section 5.18. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is held to be void by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be unaffected and shall be given such construction
as to permit it to comply with the requirements of all applicable laws and the intent of the Parties hereto. In the
event that any part or all of this Agreement is held to be void by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provisions
of Ordinance 2025-[] shall remain effective until amended through such process as may be required for the
amendment of the Ordinance 2021-[] by the County at the time of the amendment.

Section 5.19. When Agreement takes Effect. This Agreement is dated as of the Agreement Date and
takes effect when (i) the County and the Developer have each executed the Agreement, and (ii) the Developer
has delivered to the County Administrator clocked-in copies, of the recorded Agreement. If the County
Administrator has not received clocked-in copies of the Agreement within ten (10) business days after recording
the Agreement with the Chester County Cletk of Court, then this Agreement is automatically terminated
without further action of either the County or the Developer. The obligation of the Developer pursuant to
section 4.02 is effective on the date the last Party to sign this Agreement executes this Agreement and the
obligations imposed on the Developer pursuant to section 4.02 survives the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to this Section.

Section 5.20. Indemnification Covenants.

(A) Except as provided in paragraph (d) below, the Developer shall indemnify and save the County, its
employees, elected officials, officers and agents (each, an “Indemnified Party”) harmless against and from all
liability or claims arising from the County’s execution of this Agreement, performance of the County’s
obligations under this Agreement or the administration of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, or otherwise
by virtue of the County having entered into this Agreement.

(B) The County is entitled to use counsel of its choice and the Developer shall reimburse the County for
all its costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with the response to or defense against such liability
or claims as described in paragraph (a), above. The County shall provide a statement of the costs incurred in
the response or defense, and the Developer shall pay the County within 30 days of receipt of the statement.
The Developer may request reasonable documentation evidencing the costs shown on the statement. However,
the County is not required to provide any documentation which may be privileged or confidential to evidence
the costs.

(C) The County may request the Developer to resist or defend against any claim on behalf of an

Indemnified Party. On such request, the Developer shall resist or defend against such claim on behalf of the
Indemnified Party, at the Developer’s expense. The Developer is entitled to use counsel of its choice, manage,

PAGE 15 OF 32



and control the defense of or response to such claim for the Indemnified Party; provided the Developer is not
entitled to settle any such claim without the consent of that Indemnitied Party.

(D) Notwithstanding anything in this Section or this Agreement to the contrary, the Developer is not
required to indemnify any Indemnified Party against or reimburse the County for costs arising from any claim
or liability (i) occasioned by the acts of that Indemnified Party, which are unrelated to the execution of this
Agreement, performance of the County’s obligations under this Agreement, or the administration of its duties
under this Agreement, or otherwise by virtue of the County having entered into this Agreement; or (ii) resulting
from that Indemnified Party’s own negligence, bad faith, fraud, deceit, or willful misconduct.

(E) An Indemnified Party may not avail itself of the indemnification or reimbursement of costs provided
in this Section unless it provides the Developer with prompt notice, reasonable under the circumstances, of the
existence or threat of any claim or liability, including, without limitation, copies of any citations, orders, fines,
charges, remediation requests, or other claims or threats of claims, in order to afford the Developer notice,
reasonable under the circumstances, within which to defend or otherwise respond to a claim.

[TWO SIGNATURE PAGES AND [] EXHIBITS FOLLOW]
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

PAGE 16 OF 32



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the first date written

above.

WITNESSES:

Name:

Name:

STATE OF

)

COUNTY OF

)
)

THE DEVELOPER:

VISTA RESOURCES, LLC,
A South Carolina Limited Liability Company

Its:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

[I, who personally appeared before me and proved to me through government-issued photo identification
to be the above-named person and acknowledged the execution and delivery of the within name
Development Agreement and that s/he executed and delivered the same as his/her own free act and deed.

Dated:

[NOTARIAL SEAL]

Notary Public for the State of

My commission expires:

PAGE 17 OF 32



WITNESSES: COUNTY:

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA,
a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina

Name:

Name: By: Brian Hester
Its: County Administrator

[COUNTY SEAL]
Attest:

Karen Lee
Clerk to County Council

SOUTH CAROLINA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
CHESTER COUNTY )

11, who personally appeared before me and proved to me through government-issued photo identification

to be the above-named person and acknowledged the execution and delivery of the within name
Development Agreement and that s/he executed and delivered the same as his/her own free act and deed.

Dated:

Notary Public for the State of

My commission expires:
[NOTARIAL SEAL]

PAGE 18 OF 32



(1

EXHIBIT A
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

[NOTHING SUBSTANTIVE FOLLOWS ON THIS PAGE]

PAGE 19 OF 32



EXHIBIT B
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

1. Vista Conceptnal Rezoning Plan: The Vista Conceptual Rezoning Plan, which is attached hereto as Exhibit
B-1, and the Vista Anticipated Project Schedule, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B-2, both of which are
incorporated herein by reference, and made a part hereof, shall serve as the general guide for the location of
public facilities, roads, buildings, and other development features. The Property shall be generally developed
consistent with the approved Vista Conceptual Rezoning Plan and associated exhibits unless otherwise modified
consistent with the terms of the Agreement.

2. Zoning District: The Property is in the PD (Planned Development) zoning district and shall be developed
consistent with the provisions of the applicable zoning restrictions/requirements unless otherwise specified in
the Agreement.

3. Permitted Uses: The Property shall be permitted to include commercial development, including all
permitted uses in the Limited Commercial District as set forth in the [CHESTER COUNTY ZONING
ORDINANCE]. The Property shall also be permitted to be developed as a residential community to include
single-family detached dwellings and their associated accessory uses and amenities (including, but not limited
to, clubhouses, pools, pocket parks, seating areas, landscaped areas, playgrounds, open multi-purpose lawn
spaces, dog parks, and trails), with all other uses permitted within the applicable zoning district(s) and not
identified as being prohibited. The permitted location of said uses on the Property shall be identified on the
approved Vista Conceptual Rezoning Plan.

4. Probibited Uses: The following uses shall not be permitted on the Property regardless of the provisions
contained in the UDO: gas station, vape lounge, and gaming.

5. Dimensional Requirements: The Property shall comply with the dimensional requirements (ze., building
setbacks, height, and related provisions) specified in the UDO and noted in the table below:

MODIFIED MINIMUM DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS*

a. Uses and densities for the development will be limited as shown on the Vista Conceptual
Rezoning Plan.

b. Commercial outpacel(s) shall meet the use requirements for the County’s GC (General
Commercial) zoning district.

C. Maximum structure height shall be 35 feet (nof applicable to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes,
utility and communication towers, chimneys, flag poles, and antennae).

d. Single Family Density:
i Minimum lot width: 50°
il Minimum lot size: 6,500 square feet
1i. Minimum front setback: 25’
iv. Minimum side setback: 10
V. Minimum rear setback: Interior Lot: 20

Exterior Lot: 30

PAGE 20 OF 32



* All other development standards shall conform to the General Provisions, Permitted Uses and Lot
Information, Lot Standards, Transportation and Site Circulation, Environmental, Landscape, Open Space and
Signage, Architecture, Phasing, and Fire provisions as generally set forth in the Vista Conceptual Rezoning
Plan.

6. Mascimum Development Intensity: The maximum number of residential units developed at the Property
shall be limited to 114.

7. Residential Section — Site Layout and Architecture:

a. General Site Layout: The site layout shall generally conform to the Vista Conceptual Rezoning
Plan.
b. Architecture: Architectural standards for buildings shall generally conform to the Vista

Conceptual Rezoning Plan and exterior siding shall be cement-based, such as Hardie Board, with stone
and/or brick as accent siding.

8. Commercial Section-Site Layout and Architecture:

a. General Site Layout: The site layout shall generally conform to the Vista Conceptual Rezoning
Plan.
b. Architectural Design and Materials: Architectural standards for buildings shall generally

conform to the Vista Conceptual Rezoning Plan.

9. Open Space and Landscaping: A minimum of 35% of the total development acreage shall be set aside as
open space including, but not limited to, parks, green space, buffers, and water quality facilities. All open space
will be managed by the homeowners’ association.

10. Transportation: Offsite and onsite improvements shall conform to Section D of the Vista Conceptual
Rezoning Plan.

11. Modification of Development Program: 1t is recognized that periodic modifications to the Development
Program may be needed to address market conditions, environmental challenges, and other elements. The
following will outline the processes for Minor, Moderate, and Major Modifications to this Exhibit B.
Modifications to other sections of the Agreement will be processed in accordance with those provisions.

a.  Minor Modifications: Minor Modifications shall only be to the Vista Conceptual Rezoning Plan. The
Planning Director for the County shall determine what shall constitute a Minor Modification and have the
authority to administratively approve such. The following modifications, adjustment, and clarifications shall
constitute Minor Modifications to this agreement:

i. Correction of any typographic or scrivener’s errof.

ii. Minor adjustments to the site layout caused by environmental features, adaptations to
comply with regulatory requirements, and other changes considered incidental by

County staff.

ili. Administrative determinations pursuant to a periodic review in accordance with
Section 5.03 of the Agreement.

iv. Recording of any subsequent laws or regulations enforceable pursuant to the public
hearing provisions of Section 6-31-80(B) of the Act.

PAGE 21 OF 32



v. Recording of modification in the addressee provisions of Section 5.01 of the
Agreement.

vi. Recording of any instruments or documentation to evidence any act permissible or
regulated pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, where the Agreement does not
specifically provide for the recording of such instruments or documentation.

vii. Dimensional adjustments that are within ten percent (10%) of the dimensional
requirements in the Agreement or other applicable County codes or ordinances, as
approved by the Planning Director for the County.

b. Moderate Modifications: Moderate Modifications are those modifications to the Vista Conceptual
Rezoning Plan that are not caused by environmental features, adaptations to comply with regulatory
requirements, and are not considered by County staff to be incidental changes or are modifications to the text
of Exhibit B that do not reflect the inclusion of new land use categories, increases to maximum dwelling units
or square footage allowances. Moderate Modifications may be approved by the resolution of the County Council
after a review and recommendation is provided by County Staff. Approved Moderate Modifications shall be
recorded by the Developer and made an amendment to this Exhibit B.

c.  Major Modifications: Major Modifications are those that do not qualify as either a Minor or Moderate
Modification, such as a substantive change in the location of land uses or the addition of new external access
points to the public road system. Major Modifications must be processed and considered in the same manner
as set forth in Ordinance No. [] for a proposed development agreement.

[NOTHING SUBSTANTIVE FOLLOWS ON THIS PAGE]

PAGE 22 OF 32



EXHIBIT C
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

This estimated Development Schedule is subject to update according to Section 1.07 of the Agreement.
Within 60 days after the Agreement Date, the Developer anticipates beginning environmental assessments,
site development studies, and/or plan development for the Property. Subject to approval by the County of
development plans and permits, which approval the County agrees that it will not unreasonably withhold, the
Developer anticipates beginning construction at the Property within 12 months after the Agreement Date.
Consistent with the long-term approach to planning and developing the Property, the County and the
Developer anticipate the following interim completion dates for development of the Property pursuant to the
Agreement.

Year Percentage Completed
3 50%
5 100%

For the limited purpose of this Exhibit C only, the Development of any portion of the Property shall be deemed
completed upon the approval of a final plat for such portion.

[NOTHING SUBSTANTIVE FOLLOWS ON THIS PAGE]

PAGE 23 OF 32



EXHIBIT D
REQUIRED INFORMATION

The Act and Ordinance No. [] require a development agreement to include certain information. The
following information is provided in conformance with the Act and Ordinance No. [].

(A) a legal description of the property subject to the agreement and the names of the property’s legal and equitable owners.
The legal description of the Property is set forth in Exhibit A. As of the Agreement Date, Vista Resources,
LLC, is the legal and equitable owner of the Property.

(B) the duration of the agreement which must comply with section 6-31-40 of the Act. See section 1.10.

(C) a representation by the Developer of the number of acres of highland contained in the property subject to the agreement.
See section 2.02.

(D) the then current zoming of the property and a statement, if applicable, of any proposed re-zoning of the property. See
section 1.05.

(E) the development uses that would be permitted on the property pursuant to the agreement, including population densities,
building intensities, and height. See section 1.00.

(F) a description of the public facilities that will service the development, including who provides the facilities, the date any
new facilities, if needed, will be constructed, and a schedule to assure public facilities are available concurrent with the impacts of
the development construction timeline for those facilities. If the agreement provides that the County shall provide certain public

facilities, the agreement shall provide that the delivery date of the public facilities will be tied to defined completion percentages or
other defined performance standards to be met by the Developer. See article IV.

(G) a description, where appropriate, of any reservation or dedication of land for public purposes and any provisions to
protect environmentally sensitive property as may be required or permitted pursuant to laws in effect at the time of entering into the
agreement. The Developer shall comply with all applicable environmental laws.

(H) a description of all local development permits approved or needed to be approved for the development of the property
together with a statement indicating that the failure of the agreement to address a particular permit, condition, term, or restriction
does not relieve the Developer of the necessity of complying with the law governing the permitting requirements, conditions, terms, or
restrictions. See section 3.04.

(D) a finding that the development permitted or proposed is consistent or will be consistent by the time of excecution of the
agreement, with the County’s comprebensive plan and land development regulations. See section 2.01(A).

(J) a description, where appropriate, of any provisions for the preservation and restoration of historic structures. The
Developer shall comply with all laws applicable to the preservation and restoration of historic structures
within the Property.

(K) a development schedule including commencement dates and interim completion dates at no greater than five-year
intervals. See section 1.07 and Exhibit C.

(L) #f more than one local government is made party to the agreement, a provision stating which local government is
responsible for the overall administration of the agreement. See section 5.08.

(M) a listing of the laws and land development regulations that will apply to the development of the property subject to the

agreement, including citation to specific ordinance numbers, portions of the County Code of Ordinances, or both. See section
3.01(B) and Exhibit E.

PAGE 24 oF 32



(N) a provision, consistent with section 6-31-80 of the Act, addressing the circumstances under which laws and land
development regulations adopted after the execution of the agreement apply to the property subject to the agreement. See section
3.03.

(O) a provision stating whether the agreement continnes to apply to the property or portions of it that are annexed into a
municipality or included in a newly incorporated area and, if so, that the provisions of section 6-31-110 of the Act apply. See
section 5.09.

(P) a provision relating to the amendment, cancellation, modification, or suspension of the agreement. See section 5.02.
(Q) a provision for periodic review, consistent with the provisions of section 8 of Ordinance No. []. See section 5.03.

(R) a provision addressing the effects of a material breach of the agreement, consistent with the provisions of section 9 of
Ordinance No. []. See section 5.04.

(S) a provision that the Developer, within 14 days after the County executes the Agreement, will record the Agreement with
County Clerk of Court. See section 5.07.

(1) a provision that the burdens of the Agreement are binding on, and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, the
County and the Developer. See section 1.09(A).

(U) a provision addressing the conditions and procedures by which the Agreement may be assigned, if applicable. See
section 1.09(B), section 3.05, and section 5.14.

[NOTHING SUBSTANTIVE FOLLOWS ON THIS PAGE]

PAGE 25 OF 32



EXHIBIT E
LAWS AND LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

1. Otrdinance No. 2021-[] zoning the Property as PD (Planned Development).

2. Otdinance No. 2021-[], approving this Development Agreement.

3. Ordinance No. 2021-[], the Development Agreement Ordinance.

4. Unified Development Ordinance of Chester County: Ordinance No. [], as amended as of the

Agreement Date (“UDO”). The UDO includes Ordinance No. [, as amended, as of the Agreement Date and
which is cited as the Land Development Regulations of Chester County. A copy of the UDO has been signed
by the Parties and is on file in the office of County Planning Department.

5. Land Development Regulations of Chester County: See Unified Development Ordinance of Chester
County.

6. Article [], Chapter [], Chester County Code of Ordinances ] [] [].

[NOTHING SUBSTANTIVE FOLLOWS ON THIS PAGE]

PAGE 26 OF 32



Exhibit F
Form Request to Modify Development Schedule

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ADDENDUM
) TO
COUNTY OF CHESTER ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS ADDENDUM TO A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Addendum”) is made
effective on the

[insert recording date of Addendum]

, by Chester County, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and Vista Resources, LLC, a South
Carolina limited liability company, ot its permitted successor or assign.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Vista Resources, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (“Property Owner”),
is a party to that certain Development Agreement with CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
(“County”), effective date of , 2025, recorded on , 2025, in the office of
Chester County Clerk of Court in Book , Page (“Development Agreement”); and

[if applicable, insert successor or assign of Vista Resources, LLC as a Developer pursuant to an
Assignment]

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement is appurtenant to and runs with that certain real property
situate in Chester County, South Carolina, as set forth on a legal description of the real property attached to
the Development Agreement as Exhibit A (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, without limitation, Section 1.07. of the Development Agreement establishes a vested
right in a Development Schedule, together with commencement, interim completion, and completion dates
for development of the Property in accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, without limitation, Section 1.07. of the Development Agreement provides that the
[insert either Property Owner or Developer]

(hereinafter “Petitioner”) may request a modification in the Development Schedule of Section 1.07. of the
Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Section 1.07. of the Development Agreement further provides that where the
Petitioner demonstrates that there is good cause to modify the Development Schedule, the County shall
approve such request within 45 days of its submittal, and that such modification shall not constitute or require
an amendment of the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Petitioner has requested and the County has approved a modification in the
Development Schedule of Section 1.07. of the Development Agreement as more specifically set forth herein
below with respect to the portion of the Property more specifically identified in the legal description attached
hereto as Attachment A (“Addendum Property”).

NOW, THEREFORE, the Petitioner desires to execute and record this Addendum to the

PAGE 27 OF 32



Development Agreement to modify the Development Schedule of Section 1.07. of the Development
Agreement as follows:

1. Modification of Development Phasing Schedule. The Development Schedule for the
Addendum Property shall hereby be modified as follows:

[insert description of the proposed modification, including a proposed schedule for the submittal of
the Development Applications consistent with the proposed modification]

2. Approval by County. This modification of the Development Schedule for the Addendum
Property has been approved by the County as evidenced by the Planning Director’s signature and insignia
imprinted below. This approval constitutes a finding by the County that the Petitioner has demonstrated good
cause to modify the Development Schedule for the Addendum Property.

[insert name] Planning Director’s Dated Stamp of Approval
Chester County Planning Director

3. Effect of Modification of Development Phasing Schedule. Except as specifically modified in
this Addendum with respect to the Development Schedule for the Addendum Property, no other
modification or amendment of the Development Agreement shall be effected by the recording of this
Addendum, and all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This
Addendum shall be binding upon the County, the Petitioner, its successors and assigns, and shall run with the
title to the Addendum Property.

4. Recording Required. This Addendum shall be recorded by the Petitioner within fourteen (14)
days of the date of County’s approval herein below. The modification of the Development Schedule shall be
effective upon the recording of this Addendum, and this Addendum as recorded shall constitute conclusive
evidence of the same.

5. Authority. The Petitioner represents and warrants that this Addendum has been duly authorized
by all necessary corporate action.

[insert Section 6. only if Petitioner is not Vista Resources, LLC or its
successor in corporate interest]

6. Consent by Property Owner. The undersigned Property Owner hereby consents to the
modification of the Development Phasing Schedule for the Addendum Property:

PAGE 28 OF 32



Witness: Property Owner:

Print Name: By:
Print Name:
Its:

Print Name:

STATE OF
COUNTY OF
Personally appeared before me the undersigned witness who being duly sworn deposes and says that
he/she saw the within named , (hame), the (title) of
(Property Owner), (corporate form), sign, and as its act and deed

deliver the foregoing instrument for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and that he/she, together with
(witness #2), the other witness subscribed above, witnessed the execution thereof.

Sworn to before me this
day of , 20

Notary Public for (Witness #1 sign here)
County, State of

My Commission Expires:
[NOTARIAL STAMP-SEAL]
[Insert Signature Pages for Petitioner]

[Insert Attachment A: Legal Description of Assignment Property]

PAGE 29 OF 32



Exhibit G
Form Assignment

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION
OF CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
AND OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO
A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

N N N’ N

COUNTY OF CHESTER

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
AND OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Assignment”) is
made effective on the

[insert date of Assignment]

, by
[insert name of assignot]

, (“Assignot”), and
[insert name of assignee]

, (“Assignee”), (collectively, “Parties”).
RECITALS

WHEREAS, VISTA RESOURCES, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, is a party to
that certain Development Agreement with CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, effective date of
2025, recorded on , 2025, in the office of Chester County Clerk of
Court in Book , Page (“Development Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement is appurtenant to and runs with that certain real property
situate in Chester County, State of South Carolina, as set forth on a legal description of the real property
attached to the Development Agreement as Exhibit H (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement establishes certain vested Development Rights and
development obligations as more specifically set forth therewith; and

WHEREAS, Section 3.05. of the Development Agreement authorizes the conveyance, sale, transfer,
ground lease, and other dedications by Vista Resources, LL.C and its successors and assigns of any portion or
all of the Property, and Sections 3.05 and 5.14. of the Development Agreement authorizes the Assignment by
Vista Resources, LLC and its successors and assigns, of any portion or all of its Development Rights and/or
development obligations to such transferee or grantee; and

[insert interim conveyances and assignments, if any]
WHEREAS, on
[insert date of contract to sell and purchase a portion or all of the Property]

Assignor and Assignee entered into a contract to sell and purchase that portion of the Property as more
specifically set forth in the legal description attached hereto as Attachment A (“Assignment Property”); and

WHEREAS, in consideration of Assignot’s agreement to convey the Assignment Property to

Assignee, Assignee has agreed to assume those certain development obligations under the Development
Agreement appurtenant to the Assignment Property as more specifically set forth herein below; and

PAGE 1 0OF 32



WHEREAS, in consideration of Assignee’s agreement to acquire the Assignment Property, Assignor
has agreed to assign to Assignee those certain Development Rights under the Development Agreement
appurtenant to the Assignment Property as more specifically set forth herein below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Assignment and Assumption of Development Rights. Assignor hereby assigns to

Assignee, and Assignee hereby assumes from Assignor, those certain Development Rights as specifically set
forth herein:

[insert assigned Development Rights]

2. Retained Development Rights. Assignor retains any and all Development Rights not
specifically assigned to Assignee herein above, including without limitation:

[insert retained Development Rights]

3. Assignment and Assumption of Development Obligations. Assignor hereby assigns to

Assignee and Assignee hereby assumes from Assignor those certain development obligations as specifically
set forth herein:

[insert assigned development obligations]

4. Retained Development Obligations. Assignor retains the following development
obligations:

[insert retained development obligations]

5. Release; Indemnity. Assignee hereby releases Assignor and its successors and assigns
(other than Assignee and its affiliates, successors and assigns) from any and all liability in connection with the
performance of any of the development obligations and the exercise of any Development Rights as
specifically set forth herein above. Assignee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Assignor and its
members, managers, officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns, from and against all losses, fines,
penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, costs and expenses (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ and consultants’ fees) arising in any manner, directly or indirectly, out of or by reason of
the development obligations and Development Rights as specifically set forth hereinabove. This
indemnification shall survive the execution and delivery of this Assighment and the closing of the sale of the
Assignment Property to Assignee.

6. Severability. If any provision of this Assignment shall be held to be invalid or
unenforceable, then the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby.

7. Notice to Chester County. Assignor covenants and agrees for the benefit of Assignee that,
to the full extent required under the Development Agreement, Assignor shall, prior to or contemporaneously
with the making hereof, comply with all requirements of the Development Agreement regarding notice of
Assignment to Chester County. Pursuant to Section 3.05 of the Development Agreement, Assignee shall have
the obligation to record this executed Assignment with the Chester County Clerk of Court, together with the
recording of the instrument transferring an interest in the Assignment Property to Assignee.

8. Binding Effect. This Assignment shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns and shall run with the title to the Property.

9. Authority. The undersigned Parties each represent and warrant that this Assignment has
been duly authorized by all necessary company action.

PAGE 2 OF 32



10. Counterparts. This Assignment may be signed in one or more counterparts which, together,
shall constitute one agreement.

[Insert Signature Pages]

[Insert Attachment A: Legal Description of Assignment Property]

PAGE 30F 32



RESOLUTION 2025-7

AUTHORIZING THE PROPERTY TRANSFER OF
K-9 DEPUTY REBA

WHEREAS, K-9 Deputy Reba has served the Chester County Sheriff's Office, aiding in the performance of law
enforcement duties;

WHEREAS, K-9 Deputy Reba will be transferred to York County Sheriff’s Office to continue her service;

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Chester County Sheriff’s Office and K-9 Deputy Reba to transfer rights,
ownership, and responsibility of K-9 Deputy Reba to York County Sheriff’s Office; and

WHEREAS, all responsibilities, including daily care, training, and other needs of K-9 Deputy Reba will transfer to
York County Sheriff’s Office upon full execution of this resolution and the agreement between
Chester County Sheriff’s Office and York County Sheriff’s Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Chester County Council that:

1. Transfer of Ownership
Ownership of K-9 Deputy Reba is hereby transferred from Chester County to York County Sheriff’s Office,
effective March 3, 2025 or soon thereafter, with all associated rights, responsibilities, and care of the K-9
now resting with York County Sheriff’s Office.

2. Release from Responsibility
Upon transfer of ownership, Chester County will no longer bear responsibility for the care, feeding, and

medical expenses of K-9 Deputy Reba and all such responsibilities shall be assumed by York County
Sherift’s Office.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be provided to York County Sheriff’s Office, the
Chester County Sheriff's Office, and any other relevant entities for their records and implementation.

RESOLVED this March 3, 2025.

Pete Wilson
Chairman, Chester County Council

[SEAL]

ATTEST

Kfristie Donaldson
Clerk to Chester County Council






Owner Permitting Authorization

We, the owners of One Qak Holdings, LLC and Carolina Commercial and Construction Funding,
LLC, are the owners of the 43.75 +/- acres located at 2228 }. A. Cochran Bypass In Chester
County, SC, We hereby authorize and encourage Vista Resources, LLC to apply to the County for
re-zoning and subdivision of Chester County Tax Map #s 079-01-17-013-000, 079-01-17-018-
000, and 073-01-01-034-000,

A
dings, LLC
Praperty Owner

. '4;'.‘.{(»1..."‘1’_./ PN j:«'(c',;‘ﬁ;,fw"
Carolina Commercial and Construction Funding, LLC
Property Owner













RESIDENTIAL APPRAISAL CARD

CARD1 OF1 CARDS

TAXMAP (079-01-17-018-000 TRANSFERRED FROM s ;gi Ejéz :(;’?JTK :ALgITE DAST:LEOF SALES PRICE
ONE OAK HOLDINGS LLC 80% HINCKLEY GAUVAIN LLC 1316 | 126 | 2 TR 08/07/20| $150,000
R oo COMMERCIAL COMSTRUCTION 5 s 5N DEVELOPMENT SC LLC| 1336 | 236 | 3 TR 032321  $10.00
S S SAnET WRENP LLC 1371 7 | 27TR 1/25/22| $170,000
WRENP LLC 1377 | 215 | 3TR 03/23/22| CORR DEED

PROPERTY LOCATION

Physical Address

District | 02

Zoning

LAND

LegalArea [1.43AC PARCEL B

Number of Acres 1LOT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Per Acre Value

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE

Year

Land Value

Improvement
Value

Total

2021

20000

20000

REMARKS

WAS PART OF 079-01-17-013-000 FOR 2021

SPLIT THIS PARCEL OUT DUE TO PLAT CAB E SLIDE 85 PAGE 7 FOR 2021




CLASSIFICATION Permit # Date Contract Price
Construction Interior Use General Features Classification Floor Size 5Q. FT.
Brick Full Bath Singte Family Basement Garage Excellent
Frame Half Bath Multi Family HVAC Carport Very Good
Stone Bedrooms Fireplace Good
Block Rooms Average
No. Stories Fair
Poor
Year SQ.FT Rate = ist Cost + Additions = Rep. Cost DEP. Econ. OBS Market Value Assessment
PROPERTY FACTORS
Improvements Notes Year Built Sketch
Well
Septic

Remarks




























Owner Permitting Authorlzatlon

We, the owners of One Qak Holdings, LLC and Carolina Commerciat and Construction Funding,
LLC, are the owners of the 43,75 +/- acres located at 2228 1, A. Cochran Bypass Iri Chester
County, SC. We hereby authorize and encourage Vista Resources, LLC to apply to the County for
re-zoning and subdivision of Chester County Tax Map #s 079-01-17-013-000, 079-01-17-018-
000, and 078-01-01-034-000,

Therik you

fe 04K Holdings, LLC
Proparty Owher

e T g T

},{;Lﬁf*ﬂ--"&»-(( R £ J.ff-:f,;wﬁf/""'
Carolina Commercial and Construction Funding, LLC
Property Qwner











































Owner Permitting Authorization

We, the awners of One Qak Holdings, LLC and Carolina Commercial and Construction Funding,
LLC, are the awners of the 43,75 +/- acres located at 2228 J, A Cochran Bypass In Chester
Caunty, SC, We hereby authorize and encourage Vista Resources, LLC to apply to the County for
re-zoning and subdivision of Chester County Tax Map #s 079-01-17-013-000, 079-01-17-018-
000, and 078-01-01-034-000.

Thank you

fie OAK Holdings, LLC
Property Dwier

“"}?fﬁ;ﬂ”ﬂz”'f( I.“ o ﬁ:;{'/;xfzﬁ B
Carolina Comimardial arnd Construction Funding, LLC
Property Owner








































Needed For Compliance

District 1

District 2

Duke Street (S-62 & S-274)

District 3

Quail Hollow Circle (S-869)

District 4

Chester One-Time Money

Option A

District 1
Secret Drive
Foxcroft Drive

Willington Drive

District 2
Claras Court
East Creek

Cloud Drive

District 3
Doe Street

Fawn Street

District4

Rocky Creek

Option B

District 1
Huntington Drive

Hamilton Drive

District 2
Claras Court
Alley Street

Cloud Drive

District 3

Discovery Road

District 4

Rocky Creek









Samsara Inc

1 De Haro Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
www.samsara.com

Connected Operations™

Thank you for considering Samsara for your fleet.

Samsara provides real-time visibility, business-relevant tools, and powerful
analytics that enable customers to increase the productivity of their fleets and
reduce operating costs. A solution for your fleet is proposed below.

What is included?

Samsara’s fleet tracking solution includes hardware accessories and a per-
gateway license. Gateway licenses provide all ongoing elements of the service,
including:

- Real-time location and vehicle telematics

- Dashboard access with unlimited administrator accounts

- Driver App for iOS and Android devices with unlimited driver accounts

- Over-the-air software feature upgrades

- APl access as it relates to features for integration with 3rd party systems
- Maintenance and phone support

Samsara does not include hidden costs in its licenses. If you want access to
Samsara'’s full set of fleet features--including but not limited to WiFi hotspot and
ELD capabilities--you will need to upgrade your license. Samsara reserves the right
to audit usage of features unrelated to the solution as well as remove them from
the Samsara Dashboard.

Payment Terms

This order form includes a license fee for the Samsara Software associated with the Hardware to
be paid annually beginning on the License Start Date and, if applicable, a one-time Hardware cost
to be paid upfront as of the license start date. The annual fees are payable by recurring wire
transfer. All transfers made by credit card are subject to a processing fee up to 3%, subject to
applicable law. Late payments are subject to a 1.5% per month late fee. If license payments are
delinquent by 30 days, Samsara may suspend the Service until late payments are remitted.

License Term

The license term for the Samsara Software licenses purchased under this Order Form begins on
the day Samsara activates the applicable Samsara Software license by providing you a claim
number and access to the Hosted Software (“License Start Date”). If Hardware associated with a
then-unactivated Samsara Software license will be shipped to you under this Order Form, such
Samsara Software license will be activated on the day the Samsara Hardware ships.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are renewing the license term for a previously-activated
Samsara Software license under this Order Form, the License Start Date for the renewal license

samsara.com



Samsara Inc

1 De Haro Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
Connected Operations™ WWWw.samsara.com

term shall be the day that Samsara extends your access to the Hosted Software for the renewal
license term. Samsara Hardware requires a valid license to function.

Samsara may ship Hardware under this Order Form subject to a schedule as mutually agreed
between the Parties or as determined by Samsara. By signing this Order Form, you confirm that
each “Ship To” delivery address set forth herein is accurate and that any individual accepting
delivery at that address is authorized to do so on your behalf. To the extent such Hardware is
associated with then-unactivated Samsara Software licenses, the Samsara Software license term
for each such Hardware device will start on the day that device ships regardless of the shipment
schedule for the other such Hardware devices. If all such Hardware is shipped in one shipment, the
license term for all such Hardware will be the full license term under this Order Form. If such
Hardware is shipped in multiple shipments, only the license term of such Hardware in the initial
shipment will be such full license term. The license term of the remaining such Hardware shipped
after the initial shipment will be set to match the then-remaining license term of the initial shipment,
so that the license term for all such Hardware under this Order Form expires on the same date. The
total cost of the licenses for such Hardware shipped after the initial shipment will be pro-rated
based on their actual license term, rounded up to the nearest month, as compared to the full
license term under this Order Form. Certain payment amounts under this Order Form assume that
the entire order is fulfilled at the same time and are subject to potential reduction based on the
actual schedule of order fulfillment.

You agree that you will only use the features included with the Samsara Software licenses
purchased under this Order Form (“Licensed Scope”). Samsara reserves the right to audit usage
of Samsara Software and to remove your access to such features beyond the Licensed Scope (for
example, the licensed feature scope or licensed user count, as applicable) at any time. If you
would like to use features beyond the Licensed Scope, you are required to purchase the applicable
Samsara Software licenses and if applicable install the applicable Hardware that include such
scope. If Samsara becomes aware that you are using features beyond the Licensed Scope,
Samsara reserves the right to charge you for the applicable Samsara Software licenses that
include such Licensed Scope at list price, and you agree to immediately pay such amounts.
Samsara further reserves the right to change, discontinue, or remove features included in a
Samsara Software license at any time.

You acknowledge and agree that, during your license term, you may not downgrade your Samsara
Software license plan to a lower Samsara Software license plan (e.g., downgrading your
“Enterprise” license to a “Premier” license).

Support and Warranty

Samsara stands behind its Products. During the applicable warranty period, defective Hardware
will be remedied pursuant to our Hardware Warranty Policy at
www.samsara.com/support/hardware-warranty. Additional support information can be found at
www.samsara.com/support.

Terms

Unless otherwise set forth herein, your use and access of the Hardware, Products, and Services
specified herein are governed by Samsara’s standard terms of service found at
https://www.samsara.com/legal/public-sector-customers-platform-terms-of-service/, unless the
Parties have entered into a separate terms of service agreement and/or a separate terms of service
agreement is attached to the Order Form, in which case such separate terms of service agreement
shall govern (the 'Terms of Service') provided that notwithstanding anything stated in the Terms of
Service to the contrary, Customer agrees the following sections from Samsara’s standard terms of

samsara.com



Samsara Inc

1 De Haro Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
WwWWw.samsara.com

Connected Operations™

service found at https://www.samsara.com/legal/public-sector-customers-platform-terms-of-service/
shall apply: License (Section 4), Product Updates (Section 7), Data Protection Addendum (Section
10.3), Non-Samsara Products (Section 14), and Hardware Warranty (Section 17). You agree to be
bound by the Terms of Service, and any capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the
meaning set forth in the Terms of Service. The terms and conditions of the Terms of Service and
this Order Form are the exclusive agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof
and no other terms or conditions, including those associated with any Customer payment portal or
onboarding of Samsara as a Customer vendor, shall be binding upon Samsara or otherwise have
any force or effect.

To the extent Samsara allows you to make subsequent purchases of Products via Purchase Order
without a corresponding Quote, you agree that (i) such Purchase Order shall be subject to the
terms and conditions of this Order Form, including with respect to payment and license terms, as
well as the applicable Terms of Service; and (ii) to the extent there is a conflict between such
Purchase Order and this Order Form, including with respect to payment and license terms, as well
as the applicable Terms of Service, the terms of this Order Form shall prevail, and no additional
terms included in such Purchase Order that are not included in this Order Form shall apply. You
acknowledge and agree that any reference to a Purchase Order in this Order Form is solely for
your convenience in record keeping, and the existence of a Purchase Order or any delivery of
Products to you following receipt of any Purchase Order shall not be deemed an acknowledgement
of or agreement to any terms or conditions associated with any such Purchase Order or in any way
be deemed to modify, alter, supersede or supplement the Terms of Service or this Order Form.

samsara.com



Samsara Inc

1 De Haro Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
Connected Operations™ www.samsara.com

Notification of Confidentiality

You agree that the pricing and payment terms specified in this Order Form shall (i) be held in
strict confidence; (ii) not be disclosed to any Samsara competitor or other entity, except as pre-
approved in writing by Samsara; and (iii) not be used except to evaluate the suitability of the
Samsara Products for your business. You will immediately notify Samsara in the event of any
unauthorized use or disclosure under these terms. Violation of these obligations will cause
irreparable harm to Samsara for which Samsara may obtain compensatory and timely injunctive
relief from a court, as well as any other remedies that may be available, including recovery of all
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in seeking such remedies. Your obligations
specified herein shall last until the pricing and payment terms herein are, through no fault or
action by you, public. This Order Form is a legally binding agreement between you (“Customer”)
and Samsara Inc. (“Samsara”). IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Customer has caused this Order Form
to be executed by its duly authorized representative.

| confirm acceptance of this Order Form on behalf of the Customer identified herein and represent
and warrant that | have full and complete authority to bind the Customer to this Order Form,
including all terms and conditions herein." "Please confirm acceptance of this Order Form by
signing below:

Signature

Print Name:

Date:

samsara.com




















































































Application for Chester County, South Carolina Boards and Commissions
Chester County Council selects citizens for service on Council Appointed Boards and Commissions from
individuals who have either volunteered, been recommended for appointment, or shown interest in being
appointed. The Clerk to Council uses this form to update the roster of volunteers and give Council basic
information about each volunteer. 4 member. of a county board or commission appointed to serve from a council district
must be a resident of that district (except the At Large District) during the entive time of service. A member whe moves
residence from the district from which appointed, or fram the county, automatically vacates the position. Please Return
to: Clerk to Council, P.O. Box 580, Chester SC 29706 or you may call at (803)-377-7852 or email to
kdonaldsen@chestercountysc.gov.

Date: 02/25/2025

Radio Users Advisory Committee
Chief Richburg Fire

Board or Commission Appointment being sought:
Name: Stewart T. Melton

sireet saaress: [N

Mailing Address: (if different from above)

Telephon H Cell: _ '

E-Mail ] Do you live in Chester County X ves / HO,

Date of m Sex: M

If recommended by a Council Member, indicate their name:
In which Council District do you reside? Please indicate (1-7) 3

QOccupation:

Are you presently serving on a County Board or Commission? If “yes” when does your term expire?
. '
CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT: I, Stewart T Melton , as a voting member

of any Chester County board, commission, or council, agree to disqualify myself from voting on any issue(s) which
may arise and in which a conflict of interest exists.

- g
Rt
Signature: W

e (;;/ —

Board members shall serve at the will of the appointing Council member and terms shall also run concurrent with
that of the appointer.  Please check the appropriate box below.

o Accommodation Tax Board

& Chester County Historical Cemeteries Advisory Board 8 Lewis Fire Protection District

c Airport Commission 0 Olde English District

o Assessment of Appeals Board o Parks and Recreation Board

o Catawba Mental Health Board 0 Planning Commission

o Catawba Regional Council of Government m Radio Users Advisory Committee
0 Catawba Regional Workforce Investment Board 0 Richburg Fire District Commission
0 Chester County Library Board & Rural Fire Commission

0 Chester Metropolitan District Commission O Solid Waste Advisory Board

G Construction Board of Appeals D Zoning Board of Appeals

0 Fort Lawn Fire Protection District Commission
C Gateway Steering Committee

o Hazel Pittman Center Board

O John Keziah Park Advisory Board

0 Lando Fire Protection District















